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Financial Highlights
NBRRHE

2016 2015
—E-REF ZZET—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETT
(e &E75)
Revenue EER 264,229 232,181
Cost of sales 5 & B AN (137,699) (143,896)
Gross profit E A 126,530 88,285
Selling & distribution costs HERDHAZ (80,080) (89,629)
Administrative expenses TRE ﬁﬁ (30,458) (52,910)
Profit/(loss) from operations ZIBEFE/(E518) 42,567 (106,667)
Taxation At 18 2,610 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 7% 2 &1 A A J& k15 8 & &
attributable to owners of the Company 27 ERNFE/( J‘g‘g Tg) 43,704 (110,422)
Gross margin £ F) =& 47.9% 38.0%
Net profit/(loss) ratio FRE/ (BB X 16.5% —47.6%
Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB cents) FRERN/(EEB) (AR
From continuing operations KEFHEKLEER
Basic HAK 1.4292 (8.7927)
Diluted e 1.4289 (3.7927)
Revenue by Product Category
WARERER D
81.6 86.2%

(RMB’000)

0.6%

2H201 6

1H2015
—E—FHF

(AR T )

vy

f Shampoo & hair-care products )
. B o . 106,179 107,837 109,390 90,667
Ski duct
e 3,523 9,753 3,063 4,085
Other household & personal care products
R R AAREES 17,509 17,806 18,762 6,204
gsa%g}gg%care products 1,622 0 0 0
Ifif;' 128,833 135,396 131,205 100,976
\ =E J




Revenue by Product Category

WARE @B D

78.5%

SIBER(EEERERAT —2—xF8% 03

Financial Highlights (Continued)

BHHE(E)

79.0%

2H2016 1H2015
(RMB’000) B ZE—RE TE2-ILF —ET-IF
(AR%F ) TE |, E¥E |, FEE |, b¥EF
B
BT 101,796 105,731 106,868 76,663
o e 13,211 8,692 12,526 10,968
Herborn
e 1 3,479 9,753 2,984 3,513
R 8,682 11,220 8,731 9,287
s
. = 43 0 9 545
Little Ki
. Y e 1,622 0 0 0
o 128,833 135,396 131,205 100,976
\ S
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Corporate Information (Continued)
NEER(E)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
NAEER (8)
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Board is pleased to report that the total revenue from the
continuing operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 was approximately RMB264.2 million, representing an increase
of approximately 13.8% from approximately RMB232.2 million in
2015. The operating profit from the continuing operations of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
RMB42.6 million as compared with the operating loss of
approximately RMB106.7 million in 2015 (restated).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the net profit from the
continuing operations of the Group was approximately RMB43.7
million, as compared with a net loss of approximately RMB110.4
million in 2015 (restated).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company improved to
approximately RMB43.7 million as compared with the attributable
loss to owners of the Company of approximately RMB110.4 million
for 2015 (restated).

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the Financial Review section of this annual report.

During the year under review, the continued implementation of cost
control measures and our success in implementing the value-chain-
oriented business model have improved the operating results of the
Group’s continuing operations, and the Group’s selling, distribution
and administration costs were reduced by approximately RMB32.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, as compared with the
same period ended 31 December 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
IEHREE (B)

Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the midst of a
volatile business environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence on
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

To kick-start the corporate operational theme of the year “Gathering
strength for innovation”, a national distributors’ meeting was held in
Guangzhou in January 2016 to introduce the new Bawang shampoo
products, to explain the Group’s investments in brand building and
expansion of channels, and to demonstrate the upcoming marketing
campaigns and publicity programs for the year.

To enhance the sales of Bawang branded products, extensive in-
store promotions were carried out on the festive days throughout the
year.

To further motivate the Group’s distributors and sales teams, an
incentive travel scheme was set up, whereby the participating
distributors and internal sales staff will be eligible to leisure travel
overseas for free if they complete the predetermined sales target for
a specific period of time. As a result, over 130 distributors and 60
internal sales staff in the aggregate were eligible to join one or both
travel events in August 2016 and January 2017 under the incentive
travel scheme.

EEENmEDM
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE W R (&)

In September 2016, following the adoption of the two-child policy in
China in early 2016, the Group launched a personal and skin care
product series under a new brand known as “Little King”, which
targets the market segment for children under 12 years old. To
enhance the brand awareness of Little King, the Group has acquired
the right to use of a popular animated character “Superwing” under
license, and has rolled out a co-branded product series in December
2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 633 distributors and 33 KA retailers,
covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore,
the Bawang branded products were also sold in Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand and Malaysia.

During the year under review, the Group rolled out new Royal Wind
branded shampoo products with the marketing theme “Follow your
true self as a natural trend setter” primarily for the online sales
channel. As at 31 December 2016, the Royal Wind brand distribution
network comprised approximately 576 distributors and 23 KA
retailers, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in China.

TE-RENLA BEBER-_T—KF
VREO ZIBE AREELT -
REALERRREINEXRHEERL
EmEINBEEIER TEBEA25 M
NHWBEREMS /STHENEIH
B ASEEKESTEAMEHEE
ATBARK EE TR _F—NF
tT_AERTAERMERIIER -

HEz-_Z—X&+-_A=+—H8 'L
oo K 53 85 48 48 B 45 KRB 633 1 9 4K 7 & 33
BEHTEl BERBE27TEEH KM

EEED - I ZFEMTCEELS
N - ZEAMGERAEEHE -

REEFERN AEBEHELEHEEIER
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergents, which target consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Group’s goal is to widen the market coverage
in China. A natural fruit shower gel series was rolled out during the
year under review. As at 31 December 2016, the Litao products
distribution network comprised approximately 564 distributors and
two KA retailers, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in
China.

The Herborn Chinese herbal skincare product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and who are dedicated to pursue a healthy and natural
lifestyle. In May 2016, a distributors’ meeting was held in Guangzhou
to launch the enhanced Herborn Chinese herbal skincare product
series. Six new series of herbal skincare products and a Chinese
herbal face mask product were rolled out during the year. In terms of
sales channels, the Group is now selling the products mainly through
cosmetics specialty shops throughout China. As at 31 December
2016, the sales and distribution network for the Herborn Chinese
herbal skincare products comprised approximately 93 distributors
and one KA retailer covering 27 provinces and four municipalities in
China. As at 31 December 2016, the Group also had about 4,780
counters in cosmetics specialty shops in China.

BEE W R (&)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEE W R (&)

During the year under review, the Group has established online
flagship stores for our Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded
products on 37 online retailing platforms in China.

During the year under review, we obtained the certificates and/or
recognitions as follows:

— we have renewed the permit for production of cosmetic
products, which was issued by the Guangdong Provincial Food
& Drug Administration and is valid until May 2021;

— we were awarded the “Golden Ant 2015-2016” certificate by
the China (Guangzhou) Logistic Equipment & Technology
Development Committee in May 2016; and

— in January 2016, three Bawang branded shampoos were
recognized as “The 2015 New High-Tech Products in
Guangdong” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Science &
Technology for a period of three years until the end of 2018.

REEFEAR  AEECE B A37E 4%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEEN SRR DN (&)

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

1. Risks Relating to Our Industry

In recent years, it is common for the Mainland manufacturing
enterprises to face continuous rising labour costs and difficulties
in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s responding strategy is
to reduce the production costs.

TERRKAHBREZE

BREFEREELREBREN® ALY TREL
EHMIN AR ARB(RBGEOD (FE
EBIFE2E) AT HRBEMELHNEERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEE WK DT (&)

2. Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure that follow-up actions with all receivables are taken in
a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews the collectibility
of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that
sufficient impairment losses are provided for in respect of
uncollectible monies. For the year ended 31 December 2016,

no bad debts were recorded by the Group.

3. Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. In May 2016, the Company had completed a placing
of shares to enhance its liquidity, and had repaid the
shareholder’s loan. The Group’s management will continue to

closely monitor the use of cash.

4. Currency Risks

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign currencies
expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group closely
manages and monitors foreign exchange risks to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken in a timely manner. The Group
will consider using hedging in respect of foreign currencies to

mitigate relevant risks as and when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from its business operations. During the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulations of the PRC.
The production of household and personal care products belongs to
the light industrial sector. No substance polluting the environment will
be released during the manufacturing process and there is no
adverse impact to the surrounding environment. The Group has
significantly reduced the power consumption as well as its plant
overhead costs by implementing energy conservation project in
recent years with positive results.

Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group adopts an employee-oriented approach, which ensures
that all staff members are reasonably remunerated. To retain a quality
workforce, we strive to regularly improve, review and update our
human resources policy and our compensation and benefits. We also
provide training opportunities to upgrade the skills of our staff
members. We also care for the occupational health and safety of our
workers.

The Group’s major customers are categorised in four channels,
namely traditional distributors, B2B corporate clients, key account
hypermarkets and supermarkets, and online sales (including online
official flagship stores and distributors). The credit terms granted to
major customers are 30-90 days, which are in line with those of the
credit terms granted to other customers.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. We have
put in place procedures for handling customer complaints to receive
and analyse the customers’ complaints and make recommendations
on remedial actions with a view to improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE R (&)

Conclusion of Litigation

The Board considers that the contents of an article published by Next
Magazine on 14 July 2010 are defamatory to the Group and/or
amount to malicious falsehood. Therefore, we commenced legal
proceedings (the “Legal Proceedings”) in the High Court of Hong
Kong (the “High Court”) in October 2010 against Next Magazine
Publishing Ltd (“Next Magazine”) seeking, inter alia, damages and
an injunction to restrain Next Magazine from publishing such contents
or similar contents.

During the year under review, the Court of First Instance of the High
Court handed down a judgement against Next Magazine in relation to
the libel claim made by the Company and Bawang Guangzhou,
including general damages for libel in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$3,005,000, together with 80% of the legal costs of
the Company and Bawang Guangzhou in respect of the Legal
Proceedings. Subsequent to the judgement, the Company, Bawang
Guangzhou and Next Magazine jointly applied to the Court by way of
Consent Summonses to discontinue the appeal lodged by the
Company and Bawang Guangzhou and to settle the Legal
Proceedings, and Next Magazine was ordered to pay to the
Company and Bawang Guangzhou the sum of HK$18,000,000 in full
and final settlement of (i) the claim for costs, disbursements, interest
and costs of taxation in respect of the Legal Proceedings by the
Company and Bawang Guangzhou, and (i) any costs that Next
Magazine may be entitled to in respect of the appeal lodged by the
Company and Bawang Guangzhou in respect of the Legal
Proceedings.

Financial Review

Continuing Operations

Revenue

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue from the
continuing operations amounted to approximately RMB264.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 13.8% from approximately
RMB232.2 million in 2015. The increase was primarily attributable to
the sales of new and/or enhanced Bawang branded products during
the year, the increase in sales of Bawang branded products in June
2016 following the release of the judgment in favour of the Group,
and the increase in sales through the online sales channel.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB207.5 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
78.5% of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations in
2016, and represented an increase of approximately 13.1% as
compared to 2015.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB21.9 million in revenue, which
accounted for approximately 8.3% of the Group’s total revenue from
continuing operations in 2016, and represented a decrease of
approximately 6.8% as compared to 2015.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately RMB19.9
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 7.5% of the
Group’s total revenue from continuing operations in 2016, and
represented an increase of approximately 10.6% as compared to
2015.

The branded Chinese herbal skincare series, Herborn, generated
approximately RMB13.2 million in revenue, which accounted for
approximately 5% of the Group’s total revenue from continuing
operations in 2016, and represented an increase of approximately
103.1% as compared to 2015.

We sold our products through extensive distribution and retalil
networks. During the year under review, sales to our distributors and
retailers represented approximately 67.7% and approximately 32.3%
of the Group’s total revenue from the continuing operations
respectively.

In 2016, our products were also sold in Hong Kong, Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia. The sales to these overseas markets outside
of China accounted for approximately 2.6% of our total revenue from
the continuing operations for 2016.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales in 2016 amounted to approximately RMB137.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 4.3% compared to
approximately RMB143.9 million in 2015 (restated). Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in manufacturing expenses and
direct labour expenses, which was partially offset by the increase in
the cost of raw materials and package materials consumed.
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BEEE WK DT (&)

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit increased to
approximately RMB126.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 43.3% as compared to approximately RMB88.3 million
for 2015 (restated). The gross profit margin increased from
approximately 38.0% for 2015 (restated) to 47.9% for 2016. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the increase of revenue, decrease
of cost of sales and the roll-out of high-margin products during the
year under review.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately RMB80.1
million for 2016, representing a decrease of approximately 10.7% as
compared to that for 2015. Such decrease was mainly due to
effective cost control measures leading to the decrease in
depreciation, advertising fee, and the savings achieved in promotion
fees and salaries through optimizing the resources of promotion staff.
As a percentage of revenue, our selling and distribution costs
decreased from approximately 38.6% in 2015 to 30.3% in 2016.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2016 amounted to approximately
RMB30.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately 42.3% as
compared to approximately RMB52.9 million in 2015 (restated). Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in legal and professional
fees and the decrease in provisions for bad debt. As a percentage of
revenue, our administration costs were approximately 11.5% and
22.8% in 2016 and 2015 (restated) respectively.

Impairment Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2016, no impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment was made (2015: approximately
RMB54.4 million).

Profit from Operations

The Group recorded an operating profit from the continuing
operations of approximately RMB42.6 million for 2016, as compared
to operating loss of approximately RMB106.7 million for 2015 (restated).
The increase in operating profit for the continuing operations was
mainly because of the various cost optimization measures persistently
adopted by the Group, resulting in a decrease in selling, distribution
and administration costs of approximately RMB32.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, as compared to those of 2015
(restated).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Finance Costs and Income

For the year ended 31 December 2016, finance income of the Group
amounted to approximately RMBO0.4 million as compared with the
finance income of approximately RMBO.6 million for 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s imputed interest
on non-interest bearing loans from controlling shareholders amounted
to approximately RMB1.5 million (2015: approximately RMB3.8
million).

Taxation

The Group did not have any income tax in 2015 and 2016. A write-
back of the excess of previous years’ provision for the Hong Kong
Profits tax in the amount of approximately RMB579,000 and reversal
of the temporary differences for the deferred tax liabilities in the
amount of approximately RMB2,031,000 were credited to the
taxation account during the year under review.

Profit for the Year from Continuing Operations

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a profit from the continuing operations of
approximately RMB43.7 million for 2016, as compared to the loss of
approximately RMB110.4 million for 2015 (restated).

Discontinued Operation

The Board discontinued the production and sales of its herbal tea
products from 1 July 2013. During the year under review, no revenue
was attributable to the Group’s Herbal tea products. But this
business segment recorded an operating loss of approximately
RMB3,000 for 2015.

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB43.7 million for 2016, as compared with an
attributable loss to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB110.4 million for 2015 (restated).
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Event after the Reporting Period

Reference is made to the paragraph headed “Conclusion of
Litigation” above.

The sealed copies of the Orders from the Court of Appeal and the
Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong were received
on 22 December 2016 and 24 January 2017 respectively.

The Company and Bawang Guangzhou duly received the sum of
HK$18,000,000 on 25 January 2017, which was recognised as other
income for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Outlook

After China announced that its gross domestic product (“GDP”) grew
by 6.7% in 2016, the International Monetary Fund upgraded its 2017
forecast for China’s GDP growth to 6.5%, which is 0.3% higher than
its October 2016 estimate. The upgrade has been attributable to the
continued government stimulus and new loan growth.

Subsequently, China has also announced in its latest National
People’s Congress that its GDP growth target is around 6.5% for
2017. The projected target is in line with both economic principles
and realities, which would help stabilize market expectations and
facilitate the country’s structural adjustments.

Based on an analysis by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development, China’s economic growth may face a long-term
downward trend, but that slower overall growth is still enough to
sustain increases in the potential spending of China’s middle- and
upper-income segments.

However, some analysts express that the Chinese government would
institute policies such as infrastructure stimulus, looser property
restrictions, and promotion of consumption to support the economy.
The Directors tend to agree with these views.

The corporate operational theme for 2017 is “To quantify with
performance following the precise execution of plans”. The Group
would adopt a bottom-up market-oriented approach for devising
sales plans for both the Group and its distributors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

For Bawang branded product series, we will tailor-make specific
promotional slogans for promotional programs in the supermarkets
for each festival during the year. Promotional assorted Bawang
branded products will be offered for sale as a way of attracting
customers. High-end herbal essence hair care bundled products
would be rolled out in order to satisfy the needs of the affluent
consumer segment. To accelerate the channel development and
reduce the running costs in the distribution channel, the Group
intends to develop strategic relationships with distributors who have
obtained an exclusive right to sell HPC products in dedicated areas
inside their respective contracted supermarkets.

As the Little King branded children’s product series is still at its
introductory stage, the Group will work on the brand-building process
and develop both the traditional as well as online sales channels. The
Group will also strive to gain a foothold in the mother & child channel
for this product category.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group has always
promoted its brand image to cater for the trendy lifestyle of young
customers. The Group will roll out high-end hair care products and
fragrance shower gels for sale at the counters inside cosmetic
specialty shops.

For Herborn branded products series, the Group intends to expand
the cosmetic specialty channel through the recruitment of distributors
who already have established sales network and proven track record
of success as strategic partners. Separately, the Group will expand
its online sales platforms to increase its sales revenue.

For production management, the Group has set up benchmark
controls to ensure optimization of material usage and minimization of
production spoilage to alleviate the pressure on the rising costs of
raw materials. Monetary incentive that is based on the cost-savings
that the production lines have achieved will be offered to workers. In
addition, every effort would be made by the management to improve
the living environments, well-being and welfare of the frontline
workers. To ensure high quality standard output, the Group will work
with independent accreditation agencies to enhance its production
management systems.
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As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility with potential distributors for launching our
branded products to other countries. The Group is open to explore
further business opportunities with potential overseas distributors.

As of the date of this report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor is actively exploring
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition currently.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and
maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of liquidity
and financial resources is set out below:

EEBERRAETE AEEKEER
HEBELHEBAE LRANGEE
EEHMBER - AEEHARKNHEER
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E=R( -
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%@éu\%ﬁﬁﬁ&§¢%

7R £ B 5K A AR < O 3R B SR WS 3 M RF R 4F
RENMBMRR - RBES MUK ER
MR

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

R=ZZB—XRF R=-ZE-—HF

+ZFE=+—-H +ZA=+—H

RMB in million RMB in million

ARBBET AREBEER

Cash and cash equivalent RENRIREEED 22.3 9.6
Total loans BB 5.6 54.9
Total assets BEE 295.5 291.0
The gearing ratio’ EEAEBEX 1.9% 18.9%

Note:

1. Calculate as total loans divided by total assets

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or disposal of
any of its subsidiaries or associate during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedge

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in China, with
most transactions settled in Renminbi. The reporting currency of the
Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the Group had
exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas countries.
The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars or United
States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are mostly
denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in Hong
Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In addition, the Group paid
certain advertising fees in United States Dollars or Hong Kong Dollars.
The Directors are of the view that the Group conducts its business
transactions principally in Renminbi and thus the exchange risk at the
Group’s operational level is not significant. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group had not issued any material financial instruments or
entered into any material contracts for foreign currency hedging
purposes. However, the Directors will continue to monitor the foreign
exchange exposure and are prepared to take prudent measures such
as hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2016.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2016, the capital commitment of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2.4 million.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, buildings with carrying values of
approximately RMB3,927,000 (2015: nil) and pledged bank deposits
of approximately RMB10,000 (2015: nil) have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 December 2016,
banking facilities of approximately RMB5,600,000 were utilised and
approximately RMB4,400,000 were unutilised and available for the
Group’s future financing.
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Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

In 2016, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and we
required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest accounting standards, taxation practices
and budgetary control.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed approximately 1,335
employees (31 December 2015: 1,574), consisting of full-time
employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
total personnel expenses of the continuing operations, comprising
wages, salaries and benefits, amounted to RMB48.1 million for 2016 (31
December 2015: RMB69.7 million).

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of
our employees and outsourcing personnel of the continuing
operations as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:
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31 December 31 December

2016 2015

R-ZE—RF R-ZB—HF

+=—A=+—-H +=ZA=+-—H

Full-time employees 2 EE 207 216
Contract personnel EHIEE

— Sales persons — {28 697 930

— Others — HAty 431 428

Total employees HBES AE 1,335 1,574
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong join social insurance
contribution plans and mandatory provident fund scheme
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under the
share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group. Promising
career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as well as
pleasant working environment are essential factors for maintenance
of a stable workforce for the Group.
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The Corporate Governance Code

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
and the internal control of the Group, and the Board reviews and
updates all such necessary measures in order to achieve and
maintain a high standard of corporate governance and internal
control, resulting in attainment of better results and improvement of
its corporate image.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) during year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the standards for
the directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirms that the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises six members, including Chairman, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. CHEN Zheng He (the “CEO”),
Chief Financial Officer and three independent non-executive
Directors. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed Directors and Senior Management on pages 52 to 56
of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the
work of management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the CEO.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The Board reviews these arrangements periodically to
ensure such arrangements remain appropriate to the Group’s needs.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors. Of which, two independent non-executive
directors possess the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related finance management expertise and the
independent non-executive directors represent at least one-third of
the Board. To satisfy the independence requirement of the
independent non-executive Directors, the Board must determine that
the independent non-executive Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. The Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine the
independence of Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a term of 3 years.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The Board held 12 meetings in 2016. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI
Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing attended all 12 meetings.

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Diversity
Policy”) as required by the Corporate Governance Code and has
taken into account the diversity of the Board when selecting the
candidates from a number of perspectives as stated in the Diversity
Policy as published on the Company’s webpage. The Nomination
Committee will monitor the implementation of the Diversity Policy and
review the same as appropriate.

Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Chief Executive
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Directors and the
Chief Executive there is no other member of senior management.
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TRERRE (B)

Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, all current Directors (being
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr.
NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing) received
regular updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk
management and corporate governance matters, and participated in
the directors’ training offered by professional body or arranged by the
Company. Materials on new or changes to salient laws and
regulations applicable to the Group were provided to the Directors.
Directors are requested to provide their records of training they
received to the Company Secretary for record.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, and our two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. LI Bida and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. LI Bida is the chairperson of
the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendation to the Board
on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of our Group, review performance
based remuneration and ensures none of our Directors determine
their own remuneration. If necessary, the Remuneration Committee
will have access to independent advice.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings in 2016. Each of Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. LI Bida, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung attended both
meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
LI Bida and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the chairperson
of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to make recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-election of
Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings in 2016. During the
meeting, the committee members reviewed the senior management
structure of the Group and the re-election of Directors. All committee
members attended both meetings.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

On 1 January 2016, the Audit Committee was renamed as the Audit
and Risk Management Committee.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, two of whom possess the
appropriate business and financial experience and skills to
understand the accounts of the Group. The Audit and Risk
Management Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAI Wai Fung and other
members are Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee was formed in compliance with Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems of the
Company.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee were prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it determines
necessary and to perform investigations.
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During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope and
findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’'s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and interim
results announcements of the Company;

— reviewed the effectiveness and the implementation of the
Group’s internal audit and risk management function;

— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

—  reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the Group.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and Risk
Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the Board.
During the year, no issues were brought to the attention of the senior
management of the Company and the Board of sufficient significance
for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held 3 meetings in
2016. Each of Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEUNG Kin
Wing had attended all three meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee met once to review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements and the compliance of the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016, is set out on pages 57 to 64 of the annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures and to resolve material internal
control defects. The Board together with the senior management of
the Group are jointly responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.
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TRERRE (B)

During the year under review, the management of the Group, through
its daily management activities, gathers information on the Group’s
business, receives reports from the internal control function of the
Group, and analyses feedback from frontline and back office staff to
identify risks in the Group’s business, operation, financial conditions
and future expansion plans. Significant risks that are identified are
presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board on an ongoing basis.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing reports and proposals submitted. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee will consider such risks and
recommend to the Board measures that should to be taken to
address them. Where appropriate, management of the Group will
assist the Audit and Risk Management Committee in submitting
proposals to the Board to address risks faced by the Group.

Based on the risks identified by the Group’s management and the
Group’s internal control function, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee will also regularly review and report to the Board as to
whether the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective, whether there are adequate resources (including
budgetary support for the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, staff with adequate qualification and
experience) for the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and whether measures are in place to
ensure that the staff are suitably trained for this purpose. The
Directors will then collectively decide on what actions should be
taken.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group covering all material controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls. The Board considers that these systems
are well established to suit the Group’s needs and are effective and
adequate.

The Directors recognise that the Group’s risk management and
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Handling and disclosure of inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information (as defined under the Listing
Rules), the Company is fully aware of its obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Board reviews from time to time its internal guidelines on inside
information with reference to its own and industry circumstances and
also makes reference the “Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in considering its
obligations to make a disclosure. The Company’s policy strictly
prohibits unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information and has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, including
the provision of an email address for external enquiries. The Company
Secretary also regularly sends out reminders to the directors, senior
management and employees reminding them of their obligations with
respect to inside information under the relevant statutory provisions
and Listing Rules.

All media communication activities are restricted to persons
appointed by the Board for the role in order to protect the interests of
the Company and keep inside information strictly confidential prior to
its disclosure.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of corporate
communication documents to shareholders; (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (iii) latest and key information of the
Group are available on the website of the Company; (iv) press
conferences and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts are set up from time to time to provide updated information
about the Group, and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. The Board
welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to attend
general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee will
normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’
meetings of the Company to answer questions raised.
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The Company convened one shareholders’ general meeting in 2016,
the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year 2015. The AGM
held on 27 May 2016 reviewed and approved numerous resolutions
such as the financial statements for the year 2015, Report of
Directors and appointment and remuneration of auditors of the
Company. All the Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing have attended the AGM of the Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. He
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the policy and procedures of the Board are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.
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Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,
122 Austin Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,

Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Shareholders may refer to the
Articles for further details of their rights.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended
31 December 2016 in relation to audit services and non-audit
services (including the review of the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the year 2016) are
approximately RMB938,000 and RMB172,000 respectively.
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EEEHS

The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing, manufacturing,
trading and distribution of Chinese herbal products, including
shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-care products, and
household cleaning products. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 174 to 175 of this
annual report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 65 of
this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2016 are set out on pages 69 and
160 of this annual report respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2016, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 31.2% and 11.9%, respectively of the total sales of
the Group. The Group purchased approximately 45.9% and 19.3%,
respectively of its goods and services from its five largest suppliers
and the largest supplier.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Save for Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products Company Limited
(“Chenming Paper”), which is one of the Group’s suppliers and is
wholly owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, the brother of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (a
Director of the Company), none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company, which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any interest in the share capital of the Group’s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers. The total purchase amount from
Chenming Paper by the Group accounted for approximately 5.0% of
the total purchase of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 176 of this annual
report.

Bank Borrowings

Please refer to note 27 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 28 to 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Equity

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity as

contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the year
(page 69 of this annual report).
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Principal Subsidiaries

Please refer to note 36 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2016.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

On 11 May 2016 (after trading hours), the Company entered into
subscription agreements (the “Subscription Agreements”) with not
fewer than six subscribers (the “Subscribers”), being individuals,
corporates, institutional or other professional investors. Pursuant to
the Subscription Agreements, the Subscribers had conditionally
agreed to subscribe for, and the Company had conditionally agreed
to allot and issue 250,000,000 ordinary shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$0.31 per subscription share
(the “Subscriptions”). The price of the Subscription Shares
represented a discount of approximately 19.48% to the closing price
of HK$0.385 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 11 May
2016, being the date of the Subscription Agreements. The Directors
considered that the Subscription Agreements allow the Company to
broaden its shareholders’ base and also represented a good
opportunity to raise additional funds at a reasonable cost to the
Company.

The Subscription Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the
general mandate that was granted to the Directors pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s annual general meeting
on 29 May 2015. The aggregate nominal value of the Subscription
Shares (with a par value of HK$0.10 each) was HK$25,000,000. The
Subscription was completed on 31 May 2016.

The net proceeds of the Subscriptions, after deducting the relevant
expenses, was approximately HK$77,200,000 and the net price per
Subscription Share was approximately HK$0.3088. The proceeds of
the Subscriptions were used to (i) repay the shareholders’ loans, and (i)
replenish the general working capital of the Group.
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Save for the foregoing, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year under review.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the
public as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity

For the year under review and as at the date of this report, the
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal actions against the directors of the Company.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
CHEN Zheng He (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Sin Yung cra

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung php, cPA, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E.)
LI Bida
CHEUNG Kin Wing rca, cra

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on pages 52
to 56 of the annual report.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. WONG Sin Yung
and Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He) has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHENG Zheng He has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 20 October 2014.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors (other than Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing) has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEUNG
Kin Wing has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years from 13 November 2014.

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, responsibilities
and performance of the Group. In addition to the fees, salaries,
housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind or bonuses,
the Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to which the participants, including the Directors, may be
granted options to subscribe for the Shares.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Updates on Directors’ Information

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, an independent non-executive Director of the
Company, has been appointed as an Accounting Advisory Expert by
the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China, as an
independent non-executive director of each of TravelSky Technology
Limited (00696) and China HKBridge Holdings Limited (02323), and
as an independent director of NASDAQ-listed SPI Energy Co.,
Limited (SPI). Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of ENM Holdings Limited (00128).
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and EERESTHAEREARD
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares A REHEBEEIENR D - 10E
and Debentures of the Company and its BRONEEEFEENESR
Associated Corporations KRB

As of 31 December 2016, the Directors and chief executive of the R —-E—XXE+_-_A=+—H EF N

Company had the following interests and short positions in the ZNA BTH A B R A QT & E BB E
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of (18 & /& )5 1l £571%F 3fF 5 K& B & 1§ I
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the ([3E% R EAE & H ) &7 F XVEL &Y K &
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong  #JR% ) ~ HHEAKR M K EHEH » %A (IR
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the IEFES RHIEEHIEXVIBETREID SB
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of W TBEHM e RN AT LB RE &
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they K& (B3 HERE il E A5 K EE &G
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (0) ZHFIE X & MR EE B 69 #E 25 LA
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept &) - sk (b) 1R 1 & & & Bl & & 7l 58 352 1%
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as T EEZTLREGFEN T MR 2
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant K&K & @ si(C)iR1E F BT A2 EH#
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed {Tif 45X 5 2@ 7R ([{E£E <3| |) R
Issuers (the “Model Code”): FRAMERNARRBEBBIMMUOT

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests in shares, EERESTHRABERZELAFKIG

underlying shares and debentures of the Company BRI REEEPHEANHES
and its associated corporations

Number of
shares/  Approximate
underlying percentage of

Long/Short position shares held issued share
Name of director in Ordinary Shares Nature of interest B 17 R A5 ER capital
EEEB EBERP2HIXR ERME RHEE BERESL
CHEN Qiyuan Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation (Note 1)
PR BRIR e P 4% 1A B #E 2
(B=E1)
WONG Sin Yung Long Beneficial owner (Note 2) 2,100,000 0.07%
mER e =) EmlEA A ME2)
Notes: B &
1. CHEN Qiyuan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station Limited 1. 7 #& Fortune Station Limited ([ Fortune Station |) % fR
(“Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan and his spouse, WAN Yuhua holding MREERBEEESRFHHS1% K49% 2 B &
51% and 49% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station respectively. 1TRE1D - PR BRR 1 45 A #E A Fortune Station T 5 5
R I o
2. Including 630,000 shares, which would be allotted and issued to WONG Sin Yung 2. £45630,000/% - REBEARARERAREESHE
upon the exercise in full of the share options granted to WONG Sin Yung under the Rt EERITEBREE  ZERMH A
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company. For details, please refer to section ERBIIKEER FAFE FL2HTXE

headed “Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” below. REFERERAMEEABRETS] —F -
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Associated Corporations
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Approximate
percentage of

interest in
associated
Name of corporation
associated Long/Short Number of RAEREEEF
Name of director corporation Nature of interest position shares ZHEZBDL
EEE8 B EE 2B REEME HIXRB RHEE (XE)
CHEN Qiyuan Fortune Station Beneficial owner Long 5,100 51.00%

BeR RN IR ExnEBA HE
Interest of spouse (Note 1) Long 4,900 49.00%

BB A 2 (5T 1) S}

Note: ME -

1. Represents the shares of Fortune Station held by WAN Yuhua (the spouse of CHEN
Qiyuan).

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2016, so far as
known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company, neither
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) to be and were entered into in the register that was required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2016, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

EEXERE(A)

ARBEFERENERZRR
NP
IR 2
BARAMEMNEESESTHRAEMN

"R —A"F+ZA=+—H KX
BRAQRARESIERITERAEIN) RKR
MAEEROTFHEERBESF NP ER
191 25 336 1%%% BELREBFENELM
NEERIORB T -

AN—T

Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share

Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held capital

RREHE REEME RHEE BRESHK

Fortune Station Beneficial owner 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
ExnEBA

CHEN Qiyuan Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%

bR BRIR FriEsl @z (k1)

WAN Yuhua Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%

BEE FryE A E s (aE2)

() — Long Position L—tF&

Notes: B 5

1. CHEN Qiyuan is the beneficial owner of 51.0% of the issued share capital of Fortune 1. [ =R & Fortune Station B 2 17 i% 28 £951.0% & 25

Station and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station. CHEN
Qiyuan is also a director of Fortune Station. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua,
is deemed to be interested in WAN Yuhua's interests in Fortune Station.

2. WAN Yuhua is the beneficial owner of 49.0% of the issued share capital of Fortune
Station and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station. WAN
Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to be interested in CHEN Qiyuan’s
interests in Fortune Station.

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2016, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

A A - WK A R Fortune Station # & ) ik 15
F A % o BR BUR JT & Fortune Station ) 2 % ©
& F ¥ A B PR BUR AR AR B £ EE 1L Fortune
Station ¥ =P H A =

2. & T ¥ A Fortune Station & % 17 % 7K #949.0% & 25
A A - IR AR Fortune Station % A &) i 17 &
HAEZ - FMAURHEEE EEWRARKEEUR
1E Fortune Station #) 1 z  # A #E 2=

RZEBE—RF+_A=+—"H BLEX
FIEBEALTZHN RAGIRERBONE
FRMALT(BRARBESIERITHRAER
SRR SEEIROFHEEREES R
HIE GO E3CB6K M EEELRETFEN
EaMAmERSOXE -
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Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a share
option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
and a pre-IPO share option scheme dated on 10 December 2008 (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the purpose of which is to give
the Directors, senior management and employees of the Group an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate its employees to optimise their performance and efficiency,
and also to retain employees whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the date becoming effective.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

As of 1 January and 31 December 2016, no shares option was
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, and there was no share
option granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 10
December 2008. As of 31 December 2016, options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 14,532,000 Shares were granted, representing
approximately 0.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the latest practicable date. No further options will be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

The above options have been conditionally granted to 42 participants
by the Company at a consideration of HK$1.0 each. The subscription
price of the pre-IPO share options would be at par value or at
HK$1.19. The pre-IPO share options may be exercised up to 8 June
2019.
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A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to two
executive Directors on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to subscribe
for a total of 840,000 shares held by a director resigned on 28 May
2013 were forfeited on the same date, which was partially exercised
up to 31 December 2016. Movement of these share options during
the year ended 31 December 2016 were as follows:

RZZEZEAFANANA RRIETRA
WITEEA ,\420000011&&’3%/7\@5%
BERERE -Hdh —REFER =
—=%FHRAZ ‘f’)\EI?FEﬁET—rﬁm S
840,000 M EEREENR B XK #H=
—E-RF+_A=1+—8  ZBERE
WAOWITHFE - BELEERNAMEEAE
KEHEZE-_ZT—F+_A=+—H8Lt

FEPMAMT
Number of share options
BROBRERE
Outstanding Outstanding Approximate
as at as at percentage of
1 January 31 December issued share
2016 Granted Exercise 2016 capital of the
8z during during Forfeited gz Company (%)
Exercise price = —Z—R%E the year the year during —EB-RE NG|
Name of director Date of grant (HKD) —A-8 RER RER theyear +=A=+-H ERTREANH Exercise Period
EEEB RER THEEGER) 8 RAT BF8A THE¥A RERXH 8 R AT HED(%) TEHEH
WONG SinYung 8 June 2009 Par Value 630,000 — — - 630,000 0.01 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
BER —EENFRANR EHE —E-MHELAMRE
“E-NFRANE
Total 630,000 - - - 630,000 0.01
st
Apart from the above, options to subscribe for a total of 10,332,000 BRIt AN EZFEZNFNANB R

Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted to 40
employees of the Group on 8 June 2009. Of which, options to
subscribe for totalling 5,227,320 Shares granted to 28 employees
had been forfeited prior to 2016.

As at 1 January and 31 December 2016, there was a balance of
unexpired and unexercised options to subscribe for 1,653,960
Shares (which was inclusive of Mr. WONG Sin Yung’s share options).
Except for the options which had been granted as disclosed above,
no further pre-IPO share options were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed for the year ended 31 December 2016. Details of Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 29 under the section
headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” in this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Continuing connected transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

1.

Production Plant Lease Agreement

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Bawang Guangzhou”) and
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd (“Guangzhou
Bawang”) entered into a lease agreement (the “Previous
Production Plant Lease Agreement”) on 9 August 2013 for
the lease of production plant at Bawang Industrial Complex
which is located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC. On 9
August 2016, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a new lease agreement (the “2016 Production
Plant Lease Agreement”) in respect of the production plant
for a renewed lease term of three years commencing on 9
August 2016 at the same location but with a reduced lease
area. The 2016 Production Plant Lease Agreement is renewable
at the option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s
notice prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent (inclusive
of property management fees, parking fees, usage fees for
public facilities and maintenance fees) in aggregate is
RMB799,517.29 and is fixed throughout the term of the lease.
Bawang Guangzhou has been granted a right of first refusal to
purchase the production premises under the 2016 Production
Plant Lease Agreement. Bawang Guangzhou has a right to
terminate the 2016 Product Plant Lease Agreement by giving
three months’ prior notice to Guangzhou Bawang.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to the
Previous Production Plant Lease Agreement and the 2016
Production Plant Lease Agreement, the rent paid by Bawang
Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang was approximately
RMB11.83 million.

As of 31 December 2016, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the Previous Production Plant Lease
Agreement and the 2016 Production Plant Lease Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company.
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2. Office Premises Lease Agreement

Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang entered into a
lease agreement (the “Previous Office Premises Lease
Agreement”) on 9 August 2013 for the lease of office premises,
which is located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the PRC. On 9
August 2016, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into a new lease agreement (the “2016 Office
Premises Lease Agreement”) in respect of the offices
premises for a renewed lease term of three years commencing
on 9 August 2016 at the same location but with a reduced
lease area. The 2016 Office Premises Lease Agreement is
renewable at the option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one
month’s notice prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent
(inclusive of property management fees, parking fees, usage
fees for public facilities and maintenance fees) in aggregate is
RMB83,816.04 and is fixed throughout the term of the lease.
Bawang Guangzhou has been granted a first right of refusal to
purchase the office premises under the 2016 Office Premises
Lease Agreement. Bawang Guangzhou has a right to terminate
the 2016 Office Premises Lease Agreement by giving three

months’ prior notice to Guangzhou Bawang.

For the year end 31 December 2016, pursuant to the Previous
Office Premises Lease Agreement and the 2016 Office Premises
Lease Agreement, the annual rent paid by Bawang Guangzhou

to Guangzhou Bawang was approximately RMB1.07 million.

As of 31 December 2016, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the Previous Office Premises Lease
Agreement and the 2016 Office Premises Lease Agreement
therefore constituted continuing connected transactions for the

Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

3. Packaging Material Supply Agreement

Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper entered into a
packaging material supply agreement on 28 March 2009,
pursuant to which Chenming Paper agreed to supply packaging
material to Bawang Guangzhou from time to time at fixed unit
prices for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2009 and has been renewed subsequently (the “Packaging
Material Supply Agreement’). Bawang Guangzhou and
Chenming Paper will review the prices offered by Chenming
Paper at least once annually to ensure that they are at market
prices or at prices no less favourable than those offered to
Bawang Guangzhou by independent third-parties. The
Packaging Material Supply Agreement was renewed by
Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper on 12 December
2014 for a further term of three years commencing from 1
January 2015 and on the same terms as the original Packaging
Material Supply Agreement. The Packaging Material Supply
Agreement will be automatically renewed by a term of three
years in the absence of a three-month prior written notice.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, pursuant to the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the annual transaction
amount for the supply of packaging material by Chenming
Paper to Bawang Guangzhou was approximately RMB5.1
million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Chenming Paper is wholly
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions contemplated under the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement therefore constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company.

The internal control and risk management functions of the Group
together with the senior management of the Group had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year under
review, the scope of review included whether the premises lease
agreements were implemented in accordance with their terms,
whether the packaging materials purchased from the Company’s
connected person were purchased in accordance with the provisions
and the pricing as stipulated in the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, and whether the transaction amount of each continuing
connected transaction had exceeded its respective annual cap. The
results of the review had been provided to the Board. During the year
under review, Bawang Guangzhou and Chenming Paper had
completed a review of the prices offered by Chenming Paper.
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The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions. The Company also
confirms that during the year under review it has followed the policies
and guidelines as described above in determining the pricing and the
terms of the continuing connected transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and the respective
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole and the transaction amount of such
continuing connected transactions does not exceed their respective
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ interests in contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions” in this annual report, no Director or an entity connected
with a Director has or had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party which was subsisting
during or at the end of the 2016 financial year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest in
competing business

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had
any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Corporate governance

For the year ended 31 December 2016, all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
were met by the Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 with the
management of the Company and the Company’s independent
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.

Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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EENEEEEAE

Directors

The Board consists of six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
following table sets forth certain information in respect of our
Directors:

=t

EZeh A BEFHEN BRE=Z2HTT
EER=-_RBIUFATEST TKRHT
AREZENETEHR:

Name Age Position/Title

HE Fie  B/BE

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 55 Chairman and Executive Director
BRER 7 4 ITREHRNTES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 28 CEO and Executive Director

PRIFES 4 BREHRITERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 62 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
HEREE BREMGERANTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 55 Independent non-executive Director
HiEEHL BUITEE

Mr. LI Bida 76 Independent non-executive Director
FERE BIUIEITESE

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 63 Independent non-executive Director
SRR S B IEITES

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 55, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in
the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having been engaged in
the consumer chemical product business for over 20 years. Mr.
CHEN and Ms. WAN Yuhua entered the HPC product business by
establishing Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the
predecessor entity of the Company) in 1994, to enter the HPC
product business in the PRC. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading
of pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture.
In December 2013, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the
“Distinguished People of Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution
to the development of the city.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 28, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in March
2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of Bawang
Guangzhou since then and started to involve in the planning of sales,
marketing, advertising and promotion campaigns of Bawang
Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN was appointed as the personal assistant to
the chief executive officer of the Company since March 2012, mainly
responsible for the daily administration and management of Bawang
Guangzhou. Since mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible
for the supervision and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and
promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works
closely with the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company on formulating overall strategic plan and management of
the Group, and executing strategic plans in marketing, and sales and
distribution. Mr. CHEN has been appointed as the CEO and
Remuneration Committee Member with effect from 9 December
2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the degree of bachelor of commerce from
the University of Toronto in 2012. Mr. CHEN is the son of Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan, the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 62, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008. Mr.
WONG was also appointed as our Chief Financial Officer and our
Company Secretary since December 2008. He is responsible for the
finance management and control, accounting, auditing, company
secretarial and investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (03398), from 2005 to 2008, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was the chief
accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial
Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003
respectively. He also worked for a certified public accountant firm
from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years experience in
corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration,
and project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a
master’s degree in human resource management from Macquarie
University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, aged 55, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2008. He is currently the
Managing Director of MNCOR Consulting Limited and the Chief
Executive Officer of SW Corporate Services Group Limited, a
specialty company secretarial, corporate governance and compliance
services provider to companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO stage. Prior
to that, he was the director and head of listing services of an
independent integrated corporate services provider. He has over 20
years of senior management experience including acting as the
executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary, most
of which are in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control and
regulatory compliance, corporate governance and secretarial work for
listed issuers including major red chips companies. He had led or
participated in a number of significant corporate finance projects
including listings, mergers and acquisitions as well as issuance of
debt securities. Dr. NGAI was appointed by the Chief Executive of
The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as a member of the
Working Group on Professional Services under the Economic
Development Commission since 2013. He is the past president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, the Adjunct Professor
of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, a member of the
Qualification and Examination Board of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of the General Committee of
the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies and Accounting
Advisory Expert Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.
He obtained a doctoral degree in Finance from Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in 2011, a master’'s degree in corporate
finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and a
master’s degree in business administration from Andrews University
of Michigan in 1992. Dr. NGAI was an independent non-executive
director of China Railway Construction Corporation Limited (01186)
from 2007 to 2014 and Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings
Company Ltd (00631) from 2009 to 2015, and is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Railway Group Limited
(0390), China Coal Energy Company Limited (01898), SITC
International Holdings Company Limited (01308), Bosideng
International Holdings Limited (03998), Powerlong Real Estate
Holdings Limited (01238), Beijing Capital Juda Limited (01329),
Biostime International Holdings Limited (01112), Yangtze Optical
Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company (06869), BBMG
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Corporation (02009), TravelSky Technology Limited (00696) and
China HKBridge Holdings Limited (formerly known as Topsearch
International (Holding) Limited) (02323), shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange and/or the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr. Ngai
is also an independent director of LDK Solar Co. Ltd (LDKYQ), which
was previously listed on the New York Stock Exchange, and currently
listed on the OTC Pink Limited Information and SPI Energy Co.,
Limited (SPI), the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ.

Mr. LI Bida, aged 76, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 10 December 2008. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. LI was the head of Department of Lawyers, the Ministry of Justice
of the PRC, currently known as Department of Directing Lawyers and
Notarization, Ministry of Justice, from 1988 to 1992. He was also an
arbitrator in China International Economics and Trade Arbitration
Commission from 1989 to 1990. From 1992 to 1995, he served as
standing deputy head of State Trademark Bureau. From 1992 to
2001, he held various positions in State Administration of Industry
and Commerce including the head of the Fair Trading Bureau and the
head of Registration Bureau. He was a consultant with a number of
companies, including Galanz Group from 2001 to 20083, Perfect (China)
Co., Ltd. and Nanfong Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2005,
Ricoh China Co., Ltd. from 2005 to 2006, and NU Skin (China) Co.,
Ltd. from 2006 to 2007. He is currently a consultant of Intellectual
Property Institute of Peking University, professor of Renmin University
of China Law School and Capital University of Economics and
Business. Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Hubei
University in 1965.
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Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing (3R3£& % 4), aged 63, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has around 30 years of experience in information
technology, financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr.
CHEUNG is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has been a
director and lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a
company providing human resources management and information
technology consultancy services to its clients (including government
organisations and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG had been an
independent director of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited
(formerly known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited) from August
1999 to August 2015. Mr. CHEUNG has also been an independent
non-executive director of Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
since November 2003 and an independent non-executive director of
ENM Holdings Limited (00128), a company whose shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, since June 2016. Mr.
CHEUNG had held several positions, including Assistant Manager,
Manager and Senior Manager between September 1980 and July
1991 in Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG had been a partner of
Coopers & Lybrand since March 1995, and had been a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers & Lybrand was merged with
Price Waterhouse into PricewaterhouseCoopers in October 1998
until his resignation in May 1999. Mr. CHEUNG was Director of
Operations and Finance of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between July 2004 and April 2008 and a consultant of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants between April
2008 and August 2008. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce from The University of Calgary in Canada in June 1979.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fkeo

Shinezot'ng

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bawang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 65 to 175, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 7 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page 92 and 93.

The key audit matter
BREKERE

BREZER

mﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂ% AREZEFBELSANTEZA
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPNEERLE

The Group recognised revenue of approximately
RMB264,229,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered and
titles have passed, which is dependent on the contractual
arrangements under different distribution channels with
different customers.

HE - Z—XRXF+-_A=Z+—HIEHFE BE&£EBE
RO AR 264,220,000 7 HHEW A - HES H 2
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REFENRDHRE NHE R HE-

We have identified revenue recognition as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and the determination of the
points to recognise revenue may require management
judgement.

Our audit procedures were designed to challenge the
timing and accuracy of the amounts recognised as
revenue. These procedures included testing of controls
over the Group’s systems which govern the revenue
recognition and substantive analytical procedures on the
Group’s revenue and gross profits.

BN EFHEFEERBEIRBNEN 2 AN KM
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We performed detailed testing on a sample of sales
transaction during the year and across each major
distribution channel to ensure revenue was appropriately
recorded and to address the risks of occurrence and
completeness. We performed specific cut off procedures
to test transactions around year-end and verified to
originating documentation that the sales transactions
were recorded in the correct period.
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We scrutinised all manual journal entries related to
revenue and inspected underlymg documentation for any
journal entries which were considered to be material or
met other specific risk-based criteria.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies on pages 102-106.

The key audit matter
BREEZSEHE

B ZBERE (F)
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPNEELE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB44,342,000, which
were significant to the Group’s total current assets.

RZTE-—RF+ZA=+—H EEERUEITE
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Taking into account of the growth in sales and nearly half
of trade receivables were past due but not impaired, there
may be a risk on the recoverability of the trade receivables
arising from the long outstanding debt and financial
difficulties faced by debtors.
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We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the estimates on the provision of
individual debt entail a significant degree of management
judgement and may be subject to management bias.

BP9 1B R R TR R AR T AR A TR
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating management’s assessment of the indicators
of impairment and management’s controls relating to the
valuation of trade receivables. In addition, we performed
substantive testing and analytical procedures. These
procedures included challenging the appropriateness of
management’s assumptions and management estimates
in relation to the valuation of trade receivables. We also
assessed whether the revenue recognition policies
adopted complied with IFRSs.
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We have discussed with management regarding the
level, ageing and recoverability of trade receivables. We
have considered the Group’s previous experience of bad
debt exposure and the individual counterparty credit risk.
We have assessed the recoverability of overdue
unprovided debt with reference to the historical levels of
bad debt expense and credit history of the
counterparties. We have also considered the consistency
of judgements regarding the recoverability of trade
receivables year on year to consider whether there is
evidence of management bias through discussion with
management on their rationale and obtaining evidence to
support judgement areas.
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements

and the accounting policies on page 101.

The key audit matter
BREEZSEHE

# B B OF £
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPNEELE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had inventories of
approximately RMB41,827,000, which were significant to
the Group’s total current assets.

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H EEBEFEEHA
E#¥41,827,000  EEEKBRARBEEFTEZHND -

Taking into account of the variety of products and
relatively short life cycles of the Group’s products, there
are risks on obsolescence of long aged inventories which
may affect the valuation of inventories held as at year end.

ZRIEEBERERESZ LERBENBAEERE
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We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because the estimates on the net realisable values
and obsolescence of inventories entail a significant degree
of management judgement and may be subject to
management bias.
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Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
methodology and assumptions used by management in
calculating the inventory provisions. We reviewed
management’s identification of slow moving and
obsolete inventories, and critically assessed whether
appropriate provisions had been established for slow
moving and obsolete items. When considering
management’s assessment, we had also taken into
account the most recent prices achieved on sales across
different products.
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We also assessed the reliability of management’s
assessment by considering the utilisation or release of
previously recorded provisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Going concern consideration
Refer to note 1 and note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The key audit matter
BREEZSEHE

B ZBERE (F)

HREENER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPNEELE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had accumulated
losses of approximately RMB1,567,651,000 and reported
net operating cash outflow of approximately
RMB1,160,000. In view of such circumstances, the
directors of the Company have given consideration to the
future liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue
as a going concern.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
obtaining and reviewing the cash flow forecast prepared
by the management. We then challenged the
reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry and reconciled
input data to supporting evidences including subsequent
financial information and cash position of the Group.
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Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. CHAN Wing Kit.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CHAN Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
28 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

REESR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR¥ET T AR®T T
(Restated)
(e E5)
Continuing operations FERSEER
Revenue ] 7 264,229 232,181
Cost of sales 85 & A AR (137,699) (143,896)
Gross profit EF 126,530 88,285
Other income E bl A 8 28,001 1,835
Changes in fair value less costs to sell 4 ¥ & & A 7 BIER
in respect of biological assets HEKAMEBIELR 20 29 116
Selling and distribution costs $HE N9 HE KA (80,080) (89,629)
Administrative expenses TR X (30,458) (52,910)
Other expenses H A X (1,455) (54,364)
Share of loss of a joint venture JEihe & tXEBE 18 - (696)
Waiver of capital injection in a joint e /NS D2
venture 18 - 696
Finance costs 5 7% & F 9 (1,473) (3,755)
Profit/(loss) before taxation bR FT1S B AT AE/ (B 18) 41,094 (110,422
Taxation FTigfi 10 2,610 —
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing 28 A &1 B A JE{L
operations attributable to owners of B QBB R Y
the Company FRMBE/(EE) 11 43,704 (110,422)
Discontinued operation ERIEREEK
Loss for the year from discontinued EiN/NSI B RN e
operation attributable to owners of the & &2 2 FNEE
Company 13 - ©)]
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AN A R A A FE(E 2
owners of the Company FRFE/ (EE) 43,704 (110,425)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF/(ER) 15
From continuing and discontinued V=BT T 85 Y
operations BRI &S 2T
Basic H K RMB1.4292 RMB(3.7928)
cents cents
AR ¥1.42924l A K% (3.7928)1l
Diluted s RMB1.4289 RMB(3.7928)
cents cents
AR #1.42891L A K% (3.7928)1l
From continuing operations KEFFBILEER
Basic H K RMB1.4292 RMB(3.7927)
cents cents
AR ¥1.42924 A R#(3.7927)1L
Diluted BE RMB1.4289 RMB(3.7927)
cents cents

AR #1.42891 A K% (3.7927)1l

65



66

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GERERAMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT
(Restated)
(Fe&E75)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE/(FE) 43,704 (110,425)
Other comprehensive expense Hit2E X H
Item that may be reclassified subsequently HEREH P EEEZAIER:
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BONEBIRE 2 EHERE
translation of foreign operations (1,740) (2,711)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) KRANFEER AEEFER
for the year attributable to owners of TEKA/ ()@
the Company 41,964 (113,136)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wa M BRR R

As at 31 December 2016 N=ZE— R F+=-A=+—H

31.12.2016 31.12.2015 1.1.2015
—E—REF —ET—hF ZET—AEF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H —H—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR®T T AREFT AREFTIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(BE5) (&=75))
Non-current asset kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 19 137,237 155,284 225,482
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 41,827 40,909 52,039
Biological assets EYEE 20 457 426 426
Trade and other receivables BohEMEIREZR 22 65,584 64,794 68,168
Amounts due from related parties & U 8 5% 5 2018 34(a) 8,075 75 —
Pledged bank deposits AR IR 1717 3K 23 10 — —
Deposit with bank RITIF 23 20,000 20,000 20,000
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHB LIRS 23 22,312 9,604 16,934
158,265 135,808 157,567
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B LEMENANETSR 24 127,121 171,888 166,034
Amounts due to related parties FE S BB 5 TR 1B 34(a) 660 7,301 6,208
Bank borrowings RITE N 27 5,610 - -
Income tax payables ETATIER 9,066 9,645 9,645
Provisions FHIRER 25 2,503 3,826 2,044
144,960 192,660 183,931
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE/(EE) BE 13,305 (56,852) (26,364)
Total assets less current WEERARBAERE
liabilities 150,542 98,432 199,118
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Loans from controlling TR IR R E K
shareholders 34(i) — 54,946 44,069
Deferred tax liability EEREESE 26 - 2,031 2,031
— 56,977 46,100
Net assets EEFE 150,542 41,455 153,018




68

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

ma BBIRR R (E)

As at 31 December 2016 R=Z—~F+=-A=+—H

31.12.2016 31.12.2015 1.1.2015
—B-AF —F-1F —FTIF
+=A=+-8 +t=A=+-R —A-H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 3 AR® TR ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated)
€ =2 (se&E7)
Capital and reserves BAEREE
Share capital A% AR 28(a) 277,878 256,705 256,639
Reserves 1 28(b) (127,336) (215,250) (103,621)
Total equity EREEE 150,542 41,455 153,018

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 175 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

e
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
FR RSO

FEEE1SAENGAMBRERLESZS
RZE—+tF=ZA=+\BHETHHE
REBRBIRERT:

Director

-
Mr. CHEN Zheng He

PR IE 8§
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREHK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREENEARL
Share Share PRC statutory Capital Merger Translation Other Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REEE
RE  RAEE RE EXRE AUHE EXRE HeRe 2itEiE RRLE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETT AREBTR

At 1 January 2015 (Audited) RZF-1F
—-A—-B(EER) 256,639 1,354,742 49,887 4,966 8,468 (26,474) 6,245 (1,501,422) 153,051
Adjustment (note 2) FAE(f5E2) - - - - - - - (33) (33)
At 1 January 2015 (Restated) RZZ-HFE—-f—H
(BE35) 256,639 1,364,742 49,887 4,966 8,468 (26,474) 6,245 (1,501,455) 153,018
Loss for the year FREE
Other comprehensive expense for ~ 2 2 B E R
the year - - - - - - - (110,425)  (110,425)
Exchange differences arisingon (4N EHRBE 2 EH
translation of foreign operations 33 - - - - - 2,711) - - 2,711)
Total comprehensive expense FREEIMEE
for the year - - - - - e (110425 (113,13

Deemed contribution arising from 2 iR IR M & BER
non-interest bearing loans from MEEZRRIE

controling shareholders (Wt &E34())
note 34) - - - - - - 1,507 - 1507
Issue of shares under share option %77k Z H1E 51 &
scheme (note 28) (Bt7E28) 66 1,627 - (1,627) - - - - 66
Forfeiture of vested equity-settled SR ING B A AR ERE L
share-based payments LA 17 BE R - - - (625) - - - 525 -
At 31 December 2015 (Restated) R -E—HF+-A=+—8
(BE7) 256,705 1,356,369 49,887 2,814 8,468 (29,185) 7,752 (1,611,355) 41,455
At 1 January 2016 (Restated) RZZE—~§¥—A—H
(&) 256,705 1,356,369 49,887 2,814 8,468 (29,185) 7,752 (1,611,355) 41,455
Profit for the year FREF
Other comprehensive expense Hi2EER
for the year - - - - - - - 43,704 43,704
Exchange differences arising MEBBE L
on translation of foreign ERzZ
operations - - - - - (1,740) - - (1,740)

Total comprehensive (expense) ERc2E ) RAEE
income for the year - - - - - (1,740) = 43,704 41,964

Deemed contrioution arising from R R IEE M P 2B
non-interest bearing loans from FELZRREE

controling shareholders (P &E34()

(note 34() - - - - - - 1,669 - 1,669
Issue of shares by way of placing LA EF R ETRE 21,173 44,462 = = = = = - 65,635
Share issue expenses REZTER = (181) = = = = = = (181)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE

+ZA=+-H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (30,925) 9,421 (1,567,651) 150,542
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—RE —EF—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®FTrx
(Restated)
(Fe&E75)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Profit/(loss) before taxation from continuing T 458 4 A e FR 5 T A
operations 1 /F'ﬁ / (EES #B) 41,094 (110,422
Loss before taxation from discontinued operation B 42 |F & & 2 7 7 B ATE 18 - 3)
41,094 (110,425)
Adjustments for: HTIEL FE
Bank interest income |ITH B A (406) (620)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell EMEERAARBEREE
in respect of biological assets A E B8 (29) (116)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME WMENMEREITE 11,898 17,280
Finance costs A& B A 1,473 3,755
Impairment loss recognised in respect B 5B RIEBZ
of trade receivables WEBRER 2,425 4,809
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, BEYE  WEIZE
plant and equipment B/ (k) 1,455 (51)
Write-down of inventories FEWKE 1,427 796
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEKERD (243) (1,637)
Write-off of inventories 78 Wz 2,493 6,106
Write-back of payables for acquisition of property, B E W%  ME &
plant and equipment B2 IR ER (4,083) —
Provision for litigation FAFIRER 722 3,487
Impairment loss recognised in respect of WE HBELEEZ
property, plant and equipment EEKER - 54,364
Share of loss of a joint venture Eih & & N FEE = 696
Waiver of capital injection in a joint venture e = /NI DE o= - (696)
Operating cash flows before working LEBEESEHAIZ
capital changes KEESRE 58,226 (22,252)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =& (g m) /R (4,583) 6,010
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K E th FE U 58 18 0 (3,215) (1,602)
Increase in amounts due from related parties & LAt 8 Bk 7 SR T8 3 0 (8,000) -
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 K E th &S 518
other payables CRL ) /48 hn (34,902) 6,769
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to JE 1<) 3 5 5RIE
related parties CRLA) /48 1N (6,641) 1,093
Decrease in provisions REARS (2,045) (1,705)
Cash generated used in operations KEEETAMNR S (1,160) (11,687)
Income taxes paid =) H PRI = -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES & EZB T ANE L BHE (1,160) (11,687
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GERTRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE
2016 2015
—NE “E—HEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR F T
(Restated)
(KeE7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment HEEME BMENLKE (1,234) (2,257)
Increase in pledged bank deposits AR R 1T 17 I8 0 (10) —
Plantation expenditure of biological assets EMEERE H—
SERBNE S (14) (29)
Bank interest received B R 1T B 406 M2
Proceeds from disposal of property, B E Y- HE R
plant and equipment HERRTERIE 236 75
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEZBFRANRESFHE (616) (1,499)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEH
Proceed from issue of new shares BT RS FIA 65,635 66
Proceeds from loans from controlling 7= N8 A% B8 FRFT 5 FOR
shareholders 33,566 32,128
New bank borrowings raised TR IRITE N 5,610 -
Repayments of loans from controlling EEIERBREER
shareholders (91,396) (26,506)
Share issue expenses WEHITER (181) -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHELENRESFE 13,234 5,688
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRBEEEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Bin/CRA) FEE 11,458 (7,498)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REAzRERBESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 9,604 16,934
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXgunTe
CHANGES 1,250 168

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND OF REXKZHLREESZEEY
THE YEAR, representing bank balances and ERITERF LR 2
cash 22,312 9,604
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

1. General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate parent company is Fortune Station
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") and is beneficially owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Chairman of the board of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company, and Ms. WAN Yuhua, a former director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company (collectively referred to as the
“Controlling Shareholders”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at 6th
Floor, 181 Tangle Road, Tangyong Village, Xinshi, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510410, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are the
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is same as the functional currency of
the Company.

Going concern basis

The Group reported a net cash outflow from operating activities
of approximately RMB1,160,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016, and had accumulative losses of approximately
RMB1,567,651,000 as at 31 December 2016. In view of such
circumstances, the Directors of the Company have given
consideration to the future liquidity and performance of the
Group and its available sources of finance in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue as
a going concern.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

General and Basis of Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the Group is
able to continue as a going concern in the coming year taking
into consideration of the following:

() The Group had unutilised banking facilities of
RMB4,400,000 as at 31 December 2016;

(i)  On 6 March 2017, a subsidiary of the Group entered into
a banking facilities agreement with a bank in the PRC with
available banking facilities of up to RMB80,000,000; and

(i)  The Group shall implement cost-saving measures to
maintain adequate cash flows for the Group’s operations.

In light of the above, the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that it is still appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 on a
going concern basis.

Should the Group be not able to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would be necessary to reclassify all non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts and
to provide for further liabilities which may arise. The consolidated
financial statements have not incorporated any of these
adjustments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised IFRSs, which include IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IAS(s)”), amendments and
interpretations (“Int(s)”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (“IFRIC”) of the IASB.
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 16 and
IAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants
IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —T—F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 define bearer plants.
Biological assets that meet the definition of bearer plants are no
longer accounted for under IAS 41, but under IAS 16 instead.
The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with IAS 41.

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41
Agriculture: Bearer Plants for the first time in the current year.
The amendments should be applied retrospectively.

Summary of the effects of the above change in
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41

The effects of the change in Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41
described above on the results for the preceding year by line
items presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
are as follows:

2.

V& 5 5] I A8 5] B PR B
7% ) & 2 A ([ Bl BR 81 %% 3R
S48 ]) @)

EFRE s ERE16RME 4158
ZEBAFERE - EEHED

B BR & 5 £ B £ 165 M BB & 5 £
EUEPA L v JK%EFI“ME%E
%w—?éi?liﬁ%m%ﬂ’]i%éﬁ
ERREEER G ERIF 165 -
FEEIBR & At E\'J%M%ﬁ)\ﬁﬁf’iﬁ
HED EERNRERBEBRE
Bl S ERIE 41 EARR ©

AEBRAFETARARE S
ERHF16HEMEMFE 2 BTN E
¥ 4AEMED- BB ZEH
EBER -

TiE SR E 165k E415RE
nTZﬁE?/s&-ﬁ'

MASET W BB & 52 B B 1658 AN
%41%ﬁﬂ%§%&%t FEBEREXN
LATRIEE :

2015

—E—FHF

RMB’000

ARBF T

Increase in cost of sales B 65 B AR 3 N 3

Increase in administrative expenses B2 B N 79
Increase in changes in fair value less costs to EMBEEAARBEREBEEXNTEHH

sell in respect of biological assets 3 (238)

Net decrease in loss for the year attributable to ARBIHEBEAEBLBEFERNFEBLN

owners of the Company VR

(156)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above change in
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 (Continued)

The effects of the change in Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41
described above on the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group as at the end of the immediately
preceding financial year, i.e. 31 December 2015, are as follow:

ERAE165RME 415
RE - EEHEDE)

TEEREERNE16EME41IR
k4 152 154 )

e o AE BI| 55 16 5% F1 55 41 5% 8 1t
MEdETEAEBE L= —1
F+-_AZ=Z+—HOGEAHBERR

onk
—
o =

As at As at

31 December 2015 Adjustments 31 December 2015

R-ZZE—8%F RZZE—HF

+ZA=+—8H #AE +ZH=+-—8H

(Originally stated) (Restated)

(REeET) (& E35)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTF T ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment ME WEREE 154,999 285 155,284
Biological assets (non-current AMEEGERSEE

portion) #B4) 162 (162) -

Total effect on net assets HEEEMNAITE 155,161 123 155,284

Accumulated losses and total effect Z &+ 18k ¥ 28
on equity ByE

(1,611,478) 123 (1,611,355)
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Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International 2. [ #5] & L& 5] i%; B
$ N :I:&

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”) 7% 3R & 2 B ([ B PR B 7% %
(Continued) FHEE]) @)
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bt E16NE 415
Bearer Plants (Continued) ZENEREY - SXEMHEY(#E)
Summary of the effects of the above change in TR EBEEERE 16K TNE 4158
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 (Continued) BIIzEE R St (8])
The effects of the change in Amendments to IAS 16 and 1AS 41 R @ 5T AE R S5 1697 A0 55 41 91 4 i
described above on the consolidated statement of financial gz aARNERH I - —T0
position of the Group as at the beginning of the comparative F—HA—HOEZEEVBERIERTH
period, i.e. 1 January 2015, are as follow: HR St BB RMAT
As at As at
1 January 2015 Adjustments 1 January 2015
R-ZZE—A8%F R-ZZE—8F
—HA—H AR —HA—H
(Originally stated) (Restated)
(REEF) (L =7)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTF T ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment ME WEREE 225,340 142 225,482
Biological assets (non-current EMEEGERDEE
portion) Ba) 175 (175 -
Total effect on net assets HEEENGHFE 225515 (33) 225,482

Accumulated losses and total effect Z &+ 18k ¥ 28
on equity By (1,501,422) (33) (1,501,455)
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SR BHRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised International 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)

(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture:

Bearer Plants (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above change in
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 (Continued)

X
A
IS

T 2

&

\
/.

R
Somm
=

THF S ot
:I =)
St
>ad

T 38

;>
| Sty
~—~

T

H

H PRt ERIE16M B 4158
ZEITFERE - EEHEY W)

LB R E163RME415R(E
A EEREEE (4])

Impact on basic
loss per share
from continuing

Impact on diluted
loss per share
from continuing

Figures before adjustments (RMB cents)
Adjustment arising from change in

accounting policy in relation to application

of amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41

B AR (AREAL)
FEHI =
%D%Mﬁm R Z AR

SR E 1655

Figures after adjustments (RMB cents)

HEEHEE(AREL)

operations operations
FRRER TRlR#E
WY ERER BREREK
B E

2015 2015

—RF —RF
(3.7980) (8.7980)
0.0053 0.0053
(8.7927) (8.7927)
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Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International 2. FE B #:T & &L (8 T B MR B
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”) 7% 3R & 2 B ([ B PR B 7% 3R
(Continued) FHEA ) )
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet EHAMARENZAITRIEEEL]
effective ERMEEREER
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised AREBVERFEBINTE B MHMHE
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective. M AR A 2 FAT R A8 7] B B B 7%
wEAER -
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments? R GWmE MBI A®
AR E 95
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with R BHRE KEBPAEHZ
Customers? AEBI 1555 I A2
IFRS 16 Leases® BREr s wms  HES
A RIZE165%
Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative' BResr Rl R A
BT ZABET A
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax et AR RIEFSEHEE
Assets for Unrealised F1258 2 RNEBEEZ
Losses' BET A R
Amendments to IFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets B FEiRE REEEHEBKE
IAS 28 between an Investor and its AR 105% NAEHEE
Associate or Joint Venture® LEEes NalZEHE
AEBI| 52855 EE!
ZAEET AR
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement MBI EHRE BROINXZTSZHD
of Share-based Payment AR5 08k Ll =
Transactions? ZABET K
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial BRBF RS RS PR B 7 &5 22 B
Instruments with IFRS 4 ERIE A5 FoORem T AME
Insurance Contracts® ZIEETAR TR B 76 3y s
B 457 R B
AR ER
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs PR BT RS 3R R B il 5 ZE B
2014-2016 Cycle® BRI ZBEAR ZFEIECE
—NFEE=-F—

NIEE®)
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SR BHRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised International 2.

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Effective date not yet been determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 January
2018, as appropriate.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
IFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

i RERZHHETRAZERT
Bt %5 45 &5 2 A (W)

! RZB—tF-A - BRUERBZFE
HAR AR -

: RZB-NEF-A-BRARHBZFE
HREM -

¢ RZB-NE-A-—BRUERBZFE
HAR AR -

¢ ER A R TEE o

° BEAR_ZT—tFE-A—BX=_F—-N
F-A—HHARFBRZFERBER-

ARBEFHEF BT TEAR
H A& RAE R 2 BIFR B #5 &5 %
AlzERAETEHAEENFEM
HM‘“HNREEEK%%fJ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—%

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, IFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities in
the consolidated financial statements. A finalised version of
IFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements
of IFRS 9 that were issued in previous years with limited
amendments to the classification and measurement by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income”
(“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain financial assets.
The finalised version of IFRS 9 also introduces an “expected
credit loss” model for impairment assessments.

2.

Fe B mRME (&)

—RETZA=t—RLEFE

FE 35 5T % S 45 5T L IR B
2= 5 5] ( B0 B2 91 75 36

==
e
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BESIAIEBEME2EREEAR
BEIRI((EBEMEZARERD

AMEIRDFERR  HOBER
AAEREFRBERER - BEMB

9545 % B FOI #  4 AR A I 3| A
(T8 50 2 0 65 4R 80 2038 7 LB AT 4 o

—s-—~&5% 81



82

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)

(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International 2. F& F #7118 5] & & & =T B &
(

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”) B 7% B %% 3R & 2 Bl (Bl BR
(Continued) B EREZER) @)
New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet EHEGRFRERZHETREEL]
effective (Continued) BB IS 3R &5 R ()

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

BEEMEREENSEOREMTIR

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through profit
or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in IAS 39 for
the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in IFRS 9 it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes
in those expected credit losses should always be
accounted for. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o IFRS 9 introduces a new model which is more closely
aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities
undertaken by companies when hedging their financial
and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-based
approach, IFRS 9 looks at whether a risk component can
be identified and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial items. The new
model also enables an entity to use information produced
internally for risk management purposes as a basis for
hedge accounting. Under IAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit
eligibility and compliance with the requirements in IAS 39
using metrics that are designed solely for accounting
purposes. The new model also includes eligibility criteria
but these are based on an economic assessment of the
strength of the hedging relationship. This can be
determined using risk management data. This should
reduce the costs of implementation compared with those
for IAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces the
amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken only
for accounting purposes.

IFRS 9 will become effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact
on the financial performance resulting from the adoption of IFRS
9. So far it has concluded that the adoption of IFRS 9 may have
an impact on the Group’s results and financial position,
including the classification and measurement of financial assets.
For instance, the Group will be required to replace the incurred
loss impairment model in IAS 39 with the expected loss
impairment model that will apply to various exposures to credit
risk. Until a detailed review of the impact of adopting IFRS 9 is
performed, the Group cannot provide a reasonable estimate
that quantifies the impact on this financial statements nor can it
yet conclude whether that impact will be significant or not.

& A 5118 5] & #2148 5T Bl B
B 7% B % R &5 2 A (B PR
B R EREZE ) @)
BEGERENZ BT REELT
B B B 75 3R 45 2 BN (#)
LR EE L E L N E!
(#)

e BRMBHEEAFERIA
MR A RAEH RS
22BN IS B R B P AT
B [\ B B IR B BE 1) b B Y
SRR - ER—EUARAS
EROT L BRVHREE
A B 95 & AR M A i 1 e 3R %
AAE- YT EROERIAR MIE
TRER -HMEATAFTER
MABRETREREEMES
MABERERE RS
HE - RIFER & ERIF39
o ALEERERESEA
MEERERRYEER S EL
FEIHFHARERE RN - H
BEAMBEAEBUERE X
EREERRHETRERRE
TEOEENGE ANMARRE
BEHEET MHEXBEERES
ERNEIF 2 HHEFAE
HEAEERETRA  FHHERE
BETEAEtREMTETH

DNE -

BRI HREERESF /N —F—
NF—H— B & ARG FE
AR WA LATRATEA -

ARABEZSEAENGBERYBER
EEANF OB B 2 1R B F A A
BEZE - ARAREFTEH BR
KRB %S ERIE 5 Al e &
AEBZHMBEEMNYBAERS
BONcHEBREE ZEBEBERE
SR BB B 7% 3R 5 RS O5R [ TR AR
= BB E BB R &5t ERI395
EARRELAERAR IASEZ
TREEREBABEMS  EEX
RFHAENSILEEINERY EIF
Ha R Eat e



FIER(RE)ERERAT —E-—"FFHK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Thus, IFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(i) |dentify the contract with the customer;
(i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
(i)  Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

(v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

IFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
consolidated financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

IFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted. Under
IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
IFRS 15.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
IFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the timing of the
revenue recognition, and more disclosures relating to revenue is
required. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 15 until detailed review have been
completed.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the leasee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any
lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment
made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and impairment
expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to
profit or loss following the requirements of IAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability will
be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

IFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
IAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

IFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided that
the entity has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers at or before the date of initial application of IFRS 16.
Since the Group enters into lease arrangements with lease term
ranging from one to thirty years, the Group may be required to
recognise the right-of-use asset and lease liability in the future.
The Directors of the Company are in the process of assessing
their impact on the consolidated financial statements of these
requirements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a
detailed review.

2.

& F ¥ A2 5] K A48 5T Bl B
(B R

ERBRRERZHITRIEESET
B P B 35 4R o 2 R ()

BERMEEEERNS16ER (1)
Hig EREEE I IEKANRALM
R T EREM R RERSE
B URBERBZEMENTE
FHAE HEBBHERZBENE
HEARBREERENS B K
B PA R BR B 2 T & N 50 i &F
B UWEHAERMEARBREIM
EfSHEETRREEBIIZE
BEETHENR - EREEEZH
ERRERX(E) BIERERS
AAEREICHREME BMELEREZ
RERBZzNE MEEAGBEZE
At A B RIGF AR -

SEEASHEERS  BEREMK
BEEAFECREE L ARBEERS
AFERIFITHEAN B EASRE-
At EHAEESEEESER
REHEIMEEE  UTRT R
AU REEE AR -

B B B 75 R R B 1658 A UK
HRRBAEAFHEHELEN BREERS
APERIFE17REE RABRE -

BIFR B 75 R &5 2RI E165% 8 10 =
E-NF-A-BaZzE&RABZF
EHEER TARPFEMA EE
R 7B 10 B B B %5 ¥ 5 ZE I B 1657 1)
FERAE RS ZACRABEERY B
BEENFIBRAXEEFAEANZ
War IR AKEITYHEREZ
FHHEEHRA—E=F XK H
RERAGERAERECAEEE RHE
ERE-ARAEFLEANEZF
REHRGAMBRRZZE R
M RASEETFEEMAREHR]
AEEZABMGERTIITIER -

87



88

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)
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2.

2A.

Application of New and Revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS(s)”)
(Continued)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendment to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fuffill the
new disclosure requirements. However, the amendments
indicate that one way is to provide a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing
activities.

Amendments to IAS 7 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early application
permitted.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
Amendments to IAS 7 in the future may have significant impact
on presentation and additional disclosure of the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
Amendments to IAS 7 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

Change of Accounting Estimates

Change of depreciation rate for the year ended
31 December 2015

In previous years, machinery was depreciated at 10% per
annum. With effect from 1 January 2015, machinery has been
depreciated at 6.7% per annum. The decrease in depreciation
rate used is due to the low utilisation rate of machinery with
shrinking revenue. This change in depreciation rate has
decreased the depreciation charge for the year ended 31
December 2015 by approximately RMB3,293,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for biological assets that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s retumns.
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained through: (i)
a contractual arrangement with other vote holders; (i) rights
arising from other contractual arrangements; (iiij the Group’s
voting rights and potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of
the above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Company reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses

control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

All'intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the

unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

The Group’s investment a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
Under the equity method, investment in a joint venture is initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the profit or loss and
changes in the other comprehensive income of the joint venture
are recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s
share of loss of a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the joint venture, which determined using the equity method
together with any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognised,
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes a
joint venture.

After application of the equity method, including recognising the
joint venture’s losses (if any), the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognise any additional impairment loss with
respect to its investment in the joint venture. The entire carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment in the joint venture. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

3.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

When the investment ceases to be a joint venture upon the
Group losing joint control over the joint venture, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest is
measured at fair value at that date which is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with IAS 39. Any difference between the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the joint venture and the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the equity method was discontinued is
recognised in profit or loss. Any amount previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that investment is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings on the same
basis as it would have been required if the investee had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of estimated customer returns, rebates and other

similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the

following conditions are satisfied:

and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the

heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits (Continued)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interest in a joint venture, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interest are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.

FESF R @)

MIA (&)

BEERBERENEMNBARKEAR
MeRAMBRHEZHEBER  EED
£ 3 RJ 42 ) B R 22 RE 2 [0 B N R B
ZRARAENE N AR K @ 5
ZIERNGRIN e BRZERE RS
ZAHMBEREZRMELE ZRER
HEEERNAIGEHE B MR B E A
AEPRAEREZBMNEBBFRAR
1% 2 7% [0l B e 77 o

EEHRBEEZREERE -2
HARETRS  IRTAIEBER
%) & &R T s A B AR DA Mk @ B A 3k BB
MEERAEERFFELHENERE
B HIR °

ETERBEEENBEDRENZ R
HRKEHEMLBEERES R/ 2 HE
(RBOE) RPN EEABERE
REEMBERZHERFHE -

EEHRBERENEEZSERRA
SEEMRN2HM AT KDL EE
HEEMBBZREEMELEZH
BigR

IR ELEHR AR EBaP R I
HMEANEREMEm B EAKEERAE
ETERCBERAR  EUIFER
N BVER R FER IR IR 0 Bl R H
PEHWEANEEEEDTRER -

—s-—x&E5®% 97



98

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes and bearer plants, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and immature bearer plants less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are

ready for their intended use.

Bearer plants are classified as immature until the produce can
be commercially harvested. At that point, immature bearer
plants are reclassified to bearer plants and depreciation
commences. Immature bearer plants are measured at

accumulated costs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into
agricultural produce for sale or into additional biological assets.
Biological assets are measured at fair value less costs to sell at
initial recognition and at the end of each reporting period while
agricultural produce harvested from the biological assets are
measured at fair value less costs to sell at the point of harvest,
which is deemed as the cost at that date when the agricultural
produce becomes inventory or additional biological assets.

A gain or loss arising on the initial recognition of a biological
asset at fair value less costs to sell and from a change in fair
value less costs to sell of a biological asset is included in profit
or loss for the period in which it arises. A gain or loss arising on
the initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less
costs to sell is included in profit or loss for the period in which it
arises.

If an active market exists for a biological asset or agricultural
produce with reference to comparable species, growing
condition and expected yield of the crops, the quoted price in
that market is adopted for determining the fair value of that
asset. If an active market does not exist, the Group uses the
most recent market transaction price, provided that there has
not been a significant change in economic circumstances
between the transaction date and the end of reporting period,
or the market prices for similar assets adjusted to reflect
differences to determine fair values or as determined by
independent professional valuers.

Subsequent expenditure relating to producing and harvesting
biological assets are charged to expense when incurred and
costs that increase the number of units of biological assets
owned or controlled by the Group are capitalised in the carrying
amount of the biological assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following

have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset

so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or

sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable

to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured on the same basis as intangible assets

acquired separately.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method, and include expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

FESF R @)
&RIA
E-EEETEAASRIALY

A%
=0
BERO—h 2REENETRE
BEANEEMBMRNRPETHER

TREENEMBEVIEAAE
BEFfE-FPHRBE BEEENK
BRBETEREELREREENR
GRABAMAZETEREEL SR
BEMNAABESER IR (0E
) e

EMEE

AEESREENDBRASERLER
RE-DBEDIREBEHEENUEE
NMEWMET AT HERAETIANE
E-FERREEZESREEDNR
RpEARERMRIEER - LER
HTABEEREBAREDSGHRAHIED
PIREZRBARNEEZERE

EEE-

B FZL
ERAMFETDFAEHBHABAER
TAZBEBERARDENSKRAZ
HE-BERMNEIEEDTATHRE
B 2 TR R A8 A A Bl s e RS i (m
ER)ABARRRESBA(BIERE
REBRF XA SHEBREB D ZE =
BERZ—INEBEAERNEZE 5
AR R B (B Sk AT &) E V) R
FREVFEZ X -

BB ARER T A TR X ®

E



FIER(EE)ERERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—%

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, pledged bank deposit, deposit with bank and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss of financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to
90 days, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance amount are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade or other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other financial
liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings and loans
from controlling shareholders are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material). When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to capital
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of impairment assessment, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy
for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on
recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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4.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors of the
Company has made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Going concern consideration

The assessment of the going concern assumptions involves
making judgements by the management, at a particular point of
time, about the future outcome of events or conditions which
are inherently uncertain. The Directors of the Company consider
that the Group has ability to continue as a going concern and
the major events or conditions, which may give rise to business
risks, that individually or collectively may cast significant doubt
about the going concern assumptions are set out in note 1.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—%

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis between the rates of 5% to 50% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
are available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately RMB137,237,000 (2015 (Restated):
RMB155,284,000). Depreciation of approximately RMB11,898,000
(2015 (Restated): RMB17,280,000) has been recognised for the
year.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors of the
Company determined the useful lives of certain items should be
revised, due to the low utilisation rate of machinery with
shrinking revenue. The financial effect of the reassessment,
assuming the assets are held until the end of their estimated
useful lives, is to decrease the Group’s loss by approximately
RMB3,293,000 for the each of the years ending 31 December
2016 to 2024.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables was approximately RMB65,584,000 (2015
(Restated): RMB64,794,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of approximately RMB11,946,000 (2015: RMB9,521,000).

Allowance of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each class of inventories is recognised as a provision for

diminution in the value of inventories.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the normal
course of business less the estimated costs to completion and
the estimated expenses and related taxes necessary to make
the sale. For inventories with committed sales orders or active
market, the Group estimates the net realisable value with
reference to the selling prices set out in the committed sales
For inventories without
committed sales orders or active market, the Group carefully
estimates the net realisable value based on available information
and reasonable and supportive assumptions on expected
selling prices, manufacturing costs, selling expenses, sales tax
and etc. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
inventories was approximately RMB41,827,000 (2015:
net of accumulated allowance of

orders or in the active market.

RMB40,909,000),
approximately RMB2,503,000 (2015: RMB1,319,000).
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, recoverable amount of
these assets needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value because
quoted market prices for these assets may not be readily
available. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to items such as
level of revenue and amount of operating costs and discount
rate. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of items such as
revenue and operating costs. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
approximately RMB137,237,000 (2015 (Restated): RMB155,284,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
RMB113,622,000 (2015: RMB114,597,000).

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes of

biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell for financial reporting purposes. The management
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for

fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-
Observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The
financial controller reports the valuers’ findings to the Directors
of the Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair

value of the assets.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of the assets. Note 20 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of biological assets. As at 31
December 2016, the carrying amount of biological assets was
approximately RMB457,000 (2015 (Restated): RMB426,000).

Provision in respect of litigation

Provision for the expected cost of legal obligations is recognised
at the Directors’ best estimate and with reference to legal
advice of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s
obligations. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
provision is approximately RMB2,503,000 (2015: RMB3,826,000).

Details are set out in note 25.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowings and loans from controlling
shareholders disclosed in note 34(), net of pledged bank
deposit, deposit with bank and bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associates
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposit, deposit with bank, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due to
related parties, bank borrowings and loans from
controlling shareholders. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 5% (2015: 5%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure and
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. I Bwuw)

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

(b) EREREZEERRKE

(#&)

h 45 W B (#%)
BEERERE (&)
AEENIINEFEZEBEE
LEBBBERE2BHMR KR

the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT :
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-AF —T-1F ZB-A"F —T-0F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREBTRT AR®BTR AR®TT
RMB AR 63 185 (8,914) (6,820)
Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”) & 7t ([7E 7T l) 17,104 2,153 (1,112) (13,414)
United States Dollar (‘USD”) 7t ([ 7t]) 38 33 — —
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of RMB,
HK$ and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2015: 5%) increase and decrease in exchange rates of
the relevant foreign currencies against the respective
entity’s functional currency. 5% (2015: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items, and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase/decrease in post-tax profit/loss where the
respective functional currencies of the reporting entity
weaken 5% (2015: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% (2015: 5%) strengthening of the
respective functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currencies, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss, and the balances below would be
negative.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Notes:

(a) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on bank
balances and cash denominated in RMB at the end of the reporting
period.

(b) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on loans from
controlling shareholders and bank balances and cash denominated in
HK$ at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances
and cash (note 23). No sensitivity analysis is presented
because the risk is considered insignificant.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed
rate deposit with bank (note 23) and fixed rate bank
borrowings (note 27). No sensitivity analysis is presented
because the risk is considered insignificant.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 99%
(2015: 97%) of the total trade receivable as at 31
December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has concentration of
credit risk of 15% (2015: 22%) and 42% (2015: 44%) of
the total trade receivables, which was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

6.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. @I R um

(b) Financial risk management objective and

(b) EREREEERR BT

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and longer term; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group is exposed to
liquidity risk as the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB56,852,000. The Directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the Group had sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations due to the
available facility amounted to approximately RMB85,058,000.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities of
approximately RMB4,400,000 (2015: nil). Details of which
are set out in note 27.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

—RE+ZRA=T—RILFE

(b) Financial risk management objective and

(c)

6. R TR

(b) EREREZEERRKE

policies (Continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B R B ()
Repayable @ More than
on demand 1 year but Total
or within less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years cash flows amount
RER
HER ZR—F RIFRREE
—FR (EBLRWME TREAE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETTT ARETT ARBTT
At 31 December 2016 R=-Z— K&
+=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial ¥{T4£ ¢/ E &
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 [ E fth JiE < 3¢
] 112,815 — 112,815 112,815
Amounts due to related & < 8 8 5 2018
parties 660 - 660 660
Bank borrowings RITEX 5,927 — 5,927 5,610
119,402 - 119,402 119,085
At 31 December2015 WH=-ZZE—F1HF
+=A=+-—H
Non-derivative financial T &R EE
liabilities
Trade and other payables £ 5 [ E th JiE <t
HIE 142,285 — 142,285 142,285
Amounts due to related [ < B & 5 21A
parties 7,301 — 7,301 7,301
Loans from controlling YRR I B AR X
shareholders — 60,578 60,578 54,946
149,586 60,578 210,164 204,532
Fair value measurements of financial (c) ULARBEMNEZEMIA
instruments
The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying RABESERE BREEH

amounts of current financial assets and current financial
liabilities recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
approximate their fair values due to the short maturities.
The carrying amounts of non-current loans from controlling
shareholders recognised at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method approximate to their fair

values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable of
the goods sold to customers, net of discounts allowed, sales
return, volume rebates and sales related taxes where applicable.

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on a mixture of product lines and geography. The
Directors of the Company have chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products. The segments are managed
separately as each operating segment offers different products
which require different production information to formulate
different strategies. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving
at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

o Hair-care products

o Skin-care products

° Other household and personal care products

An operating segment regarding herbal tea products was
discontinued in prior years. The segment information reported
below does not include any amounts for this discontinued
operation, which is described in more detail in note 13.

Also, the Executive Directors of the Company are provided with
segment information concerning segment revenue and result.

Segment assets and liabilities are not reported to the Executive
Directors of the Company regularly.
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LEER D HBER @)

S EB UL A B 5 4R

UTRAKEZARENFELE
7 ERAREEDHT -

7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations by reportable and operating

segments.
Continuing operations
FEEEXR
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HitRAR
ERER EEER BAEEER H
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-XEF ZT-1F ZB-Rf ZT-RF ZE-xEf ZT-1F -E-x§f —T-EF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(BE35) (BE7) (BE7) (gE351)
Sales to external customers HETIHINDRP 215,638 200,057 13,276 7,138 35,315 24,986 264,229 232,181
Segment profit/oss) ABERA (BB 0571 (0668 2430 (3015 (8489) (21797 24,512 (95480)
Changes i fair value less costs =¥ A E N 7 BIE
to sell in respect of biological i 4% B A &)
assets 2EHIES 29 116
Bank interest income RITFIBRA 406 620
Other income HA A 23,512 1,164
Share of loss of a joint venture ~ [Ef5 & & A R B = (696)
Walver of capital injectionina ~ HEALRETE
joint venture - 696
Corporate and other unallocated 7 7 fit 2 48 20 2
expenses HEmfL (5,892) (13,087)
Finance costs BE R R (1,473) (8,755)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BELEZBE
(continuing operations) B/ (B8) 41,004 (110,422
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Revenue and Segment Information (Continued) 7. & £ ZE N 0 2 E Fl @)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SEUT A B S (1)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the 4R S EUE) & 5t IS5 B MY sE3 BT att
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. CHREENESTHE e pEfE
Segment results represent the profit/(loss) from each segment BRSO AEEEZERE R
without allocation of changes in fair value less costs to sell of mOMEMEEN AL BERMBEE
biological assets, bank interest income, write-back of payables RAREENEZ BTN E WA
for property, plant and equipment, recovery from litigation BEEERWZE BT/ E) - E XU
claims, gain on sales of scrap materials, government grants, net =/ (EHB)FE - FATIRBHAER
foreign exchange gains, provision for litigation recognised/ /BEO s b EUR R TEMISE AR E
reversed, central administration cost, directors’ emoluments BARAN - EEHFMIALBEK K -
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Executive Ty BE RSB R R (G mmE A
Directors of the Company for the purposes of resource NAIZHTEERE Z2:F=H o
allocation and performance assessment.
Other segment information Htho3FE
Continuing operations
BELEER
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Unallocated Total
HRAR
EEER ERER EAREER RABH Ch
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-R%F ZF-8F ZB-AF “T-1F ZB-AF -“T-1F ZB-XF ZT-1F -B-XF “T-nF
RMB'000  RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'OO0  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(w&31) (=51)
Amounts included in the FEABLEREE
measure of segment TARE
results
Depreciation of property, nE BEREXE
plant and equipment nE 8,470 13,511 612 572 2,656 3,197 160 - 11,898 17,280
Impaiment loss recognisedin 1%« BE R R E
respect of property, plantand 2 F{EB LR
equipment B - 46,843 - 1,671 - 5,850 - - - 54,364
Loss/(gain) on disposal of REVE BRE
property, plant and REERE
equipment () 396 (44) 2% @ 65 (5) 970 - 1,455 (1)
Impairment loss recognised in & 5 fE Ui 5B 2 )7
respect of trade receivables HERER 1,979 4,143 122 148 324 518 - - 2,425 4,809
Reversal of write-down of FERERR
inventories @02  (1361) (17) (115) (24) (161) = - (043  (1637)
Write-down of inventories BERE 1,016 608 75 28 336 160 = - 1,427 79
Wiite-off of inventories FEHE 860 2,655 463 2,715 1,170 736 = - 2,493 6,106
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7.

Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s continuing operations are mainly located in the
PRC (country of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment and
biological assets.

7.

BHEREH

AEERFERLLEEBIEEPESD
BRE(FTERZR) MEE -

PP &R YRR I AR 75 =X
XNERNUEETE - FRPDEE
MEME IRBEEEERMTER
E(WBYE BELRE ARE
WMEE)MEE

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEFHUWA IRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-AF —T-HF ZFB-AFE —T—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR T AR®TR AR®TET
(Restated)
(KeE7)
PRC (country of domicile) HE (FTEBRR) 257,263 220,283 136,247 154,660
Hong Kong 575 4,813 5,011 990 624
Singapore 3N 505 2,700 - —
Thailand 7z 551 2,933 - —
Malaysia 55 2R A on 1,097 899 = —
Others Hib — 355 — _
Total “Et 264,229 232,181 137,237 155,284
Information about major customers FEERER

Included in revenue arising from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2016 of approximately
RMB264,229,000 is revenue of approximately RMB28,889,000
which arose from sales of hair-care products and other
household and personal care products to the Group’s largest
customer. During the year ended 31 December 2015, included
in revenue of approximately RMB232,181,000 is revenue of
approximately RMB31,703,000 which arose from sales of hair-
care products and other household and personal care products
to the Group’s largest customer. No other single customer
contributed more than 10% to the Group’s revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

HE-_ZT— X+ -_A=+—H
tFE RBECEEBHEERY
A R #264,229000 H /b4 & #
EERAEMRAREAZERE
MEAEESFAEFNOARK
28,889,000 HE T —HF+ =
A=+ —BLEE #HBEEHA
R #232,181,000 '+ H A $4 & # &
EalEtMRAREAZEER
KAEBREAZTFHNAOGARE
31,703,000 - EE T —REM_ZE
—RNF+_A=+—HIEFE K
EERBEHEME—"RPEEBBEAR
EEEETEMNI10% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

8. HMLU A

2016 2015
—EB-RE _—ZT—0F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR®TR
Continuing operations BEEEES
Bank interest income AT A B A 406 620
Write-back of payables for property, plant & [B] ¥ 2 &% & 0 5% 8 JE
and equipment RIE 4,083 -
Gain on sales of scrap materials BB R S 508 —
Gain on disposal of property, plant and REME  BERZERS
equipment = 51
Recovery from litigation claim (note a) FAREHE (MMFa) 18,815 -
Government grant (note b) BRI 78 B (B 5 o) 2,811 802
Net exchange gains PE 5 U 2= 810 —
Others HAth 478 362
28,001 1,835
Note a:  During the year ended 31 December 2016, a claim against other parties in fiza: BE-_ET—ARNE+-A=+—HBILEE

Note b:

respect of malicious falsehood by a media company and unsatisfactory
performance of plant and machineries by a supplier were settled and
amounts of approximately RMB18,646,000 (2015: nil) and RMB169,000
(2015: nil) were recovered by the Group respectively.

Included in the amount of government grants recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2016 of approximately RMB2,811,000 (2015:
approximately RMB802,000) were received from the PRC government in
respect of certain research projects, electronic shopping platform projects
and export encourage scheme, the relevant granting criteria for which have
been fulfiled and were immediately recognised as other income for the
years.

Finance Costs

MisED -

AU -—REBRAAHEM A ERE
WREERMRMLAREEFRENRE
MEBREEMEETE BESBEHAR
#18,646,0007T (Z T — A4 : ) FMAR
169,000 L (Z T —HF : E)H Bl@AAK
EEED -

HE-_Z—XE+-A=1+—8 #1858
BT # B & 8|4 AR AR ®2811,0007T
—ET—ARF: AR¥802,0007T) % &
BEPERAGERELARER &
B & E MO S E s 8)E B %
EME WA WA EFHERREAMUA -

9. BE A

2016 2015
—E-RE CZZE—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMETF T AR T T
Continuing operations BERYE
Imputed interest on non-interest bearing ERBERRESERZ
loans from controlling shareholders HENE 1,473 3,755
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10. Taxation 10. B8
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Continuing operations BEEEES
Overprovision in prior years: VARTF & HBRERT IR ¢
Hong Kong profits tax BEEMEFH (579) —
Deferred tax (note 26): EER (M 5E26) -
Current year BRIFE (2,031) —
(2,610) -

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of
the Group, was qualified as a HNTE in 2009 and the
qualification was renewed and valid until 2018. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to Enterprise Income Tax for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as the Group does
not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for 2016 and 2015.

RIEBEFBEECRMETE(TEE
FEBEDREEMGHEE
AC SN S TR R NS 0 7]
FE-ZTTNEFE-R—HER
25% °

FEMCERGERERTEER
EEaT (S h
¥DEE MESZEEANDL
¥ U ZEE15%HEER K -
FEXT(EMNERAA(BEIE
M) EEN—HEHPEFER
A RZEENFHERERS
FERMCE THBIAHAER
ZERBERE_ZE—N\F- R
m H2#z2-_FT—R"FER_ZF—
AF+_A=Z=+—BLFE"
FTEMNITLERMEZMND
XS zERT RN -

W EEE 2B BTG IR ER
Fm M A16.5% KT E - H =
TE-RAFEN-_E—RF+=
A=+—BLtHE AEEY
RBEERBAHBNEERMERZ
R GEHN FTA-ZT—HF
EM_ZE—A"FELEFRS
AR EH -



FIER(EE)ERERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

10. Taxation (Continued)

(©)

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman lIslands and the BVI for the
current and previous years.

Pursuant to the Implementation Rules of the EIT Law,
overseas investors of foreign investment companies shall
be liable for withholding income tax at 10% on the
dividend derived from the profits of PRC subsidiaries with
effect from 1 January 2008, unless the tax rate is reduced
by treaty. Pursuant to the Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax
Arrangements, the investor established in Hong Kong
which the beneficial owner is holding not less than 25% of
the equity interests of its PRC subsidiaries can enjoy a
reduced withholding tax rate of 5% on the dividend
received from its PRC subsidiaries. The Group does not
make provision of withholding income tax for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 since only one of the
PRC subsidiaries generated profits which were offset by
accumulated losses and the remaining PRC subsidiaries
incurred losses in 2016, while all the PRC subsidiaries
incurred losses in 2015.

10. 18 (@)

(©

REFREHELRRBREZES
HR A R RB REBEEER
Nk AERGNEERE R
RBRIEESNEAMRIA -

BIBEPERGREAE RGN -
BE-ZEZEN\F—A—HBEB K
RGN BEBE  INEHIRE
TEREINEEEARKREF
B K8 A Rl s F A IR B
10%TEH TS - BiZ#E &+
B EERTLE REB
Bl IR EBE WM REHA P R
BRAATNERDL%EFAE AT
mHmEAA AAIZZREHAF
BB B A A/ AR BOR) &R TR 40
MHES R  AEBHE_ZT—
NEERZZE—RHF+ A=+
—BIEFETRREFERAE
B EAERE—RFEFRA
EZZE-—RFELEFHEWREZ
FrEERE AP ETFA
AIE-_E—RAK_ZE—HFH
BAEEIE-
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10. Taxation (Continued)

10. 4 18 (@)

Taxation for the years can be reconciled to the Profit/(Loss) FAMEHGEAERZR 2 HAERE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss HERIT
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-—RF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR T T
Continuing operations BEKSEXER
Profit/(loss) before taxation AT/ (E18) 41,094 (110,422
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax 1% ZN ] f7 15 B Bl K 25% 5t &
rate of 25% (2015: 25%) BIE(ZE—REE : 25%) 10,274 (27,606)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REM D EERKY Y RFE
operating in other jurisdictions MEZHETE (6,501) 3,389
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax R JHE B 2 iS5 £
purpose 1,534 2,691
Tax effect of share of loss of a joint venture  JE{5 & & A &) B8 H 1 15
%% - 174
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARTBMA 2 BB &
purpose (5,288) (1,527)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMEEE G E 603 7,560
Tax effect of other deductible temporary KRB EEE=ZE 2
differences not recognised MG E — 15,339
Utilisation of other deductible temporary HREEMAENARERD
differences not recognised TREtER (622) —
Utilisation of tax losses previously not HELAIRERZHIBERE
recognised — (20)
Over-provision in prior years AR FEHBEETIE (579) -
Reversal of temporary differences recognised 1% [B] LA BT 4F & & & PR 15 1%
in prior years (2,031) —
Income tax credit I8 (2,610) —

Details of deferred tax are set out in note 26.

EER AR R 526 -
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11. Profit/(loss) for the year from Continuing M EFEREXERZ2FABR
Operations M/ (E8)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations has been BEREEE JHETAaN/ (BE) 2
arrived at after charging/(crediting): MR/ (GEA) TFIIER -
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
(Restated)
(FgE5))
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 938 847
Cost of inventories recognised as an BRERSIZEERAK
expense (note (a)) (M7 @) 137,699 143,896
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEIREITE
equipment 11,898 17,280

Impairment loss recognised in respect of ME - WEKFREZME
property, plant and equipment (included in B4R (Gt AEMER)

other expenses) = 54,364
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B SR GRIEZ BE

trade receivables BRER 2,425 4,809
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant BREWZE  FENMERED

and equipment BR/ (W) 1,455 (61)
Net foreign exchange (gains)/losses N (e) /B 18 558 (810) 171
Provision for litigation (included in FRTIREAGIATHRER)

administrative expenses) 722 3,487
Research and development costs BRARZ 2 KA

recognised as an expense 10,130 8,697
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEBKERD (GF AN LR

(included in cost of inventories recognised AR X 2 F &/ AK)

as an expense above) (243) (1,637)
Staff costs (note (b)) 8 T A (B3 (b)) 48,133 69,713
Write-down of inventories (included in cost 7 & &8 (5t AL FHER A

of inventories recognised as an expense X 2 FERAK)

above) 1,427 796
Write-off of inventories (included in cost of EMWmE (G A R

inventories recognised as an expense Eﬁ X ZTFERA)

above) 2,493 6,106
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11.

12.

Profit/(loss) for the year from Continuing N FEREEBZ2FRER/

Operations (Continued) (B518) @

Notes: B 5t

() Cost of inventories recognised as an expense from continuing operations (@) BEREEKIERABAI Z2EERAE
included depreciation of property, plant and equipment and staff costs of EWE BERRGBNEREIKNAD R
approximately RMB10,695,000 (2015: RMB15,089,000) and RMB13,675,000 #) B ANR110,695000( T —HFE : A
(2015: RMB17,069,000) respectively. The amounts were also included in the R #15,089,000) & A K #13,675,000( =
respective amounts disclosed above. T-hFE: ARYA17,069,000) ° A £ &

HEEPRNBEEEALBESES -

(b) Staff costs from the continuing operations included redundancy costs of (o) HE-Z—XF+-_A=+—HLFE"
approximately RMB377,000 (2015: RMB4,221,000) for the year ended 31 BERLYBTIEIRNAGDFEEHNER
December 2016. MARKESIT00(ZZE—HFE: AR

4,221,000) °
Staff Costs 12. B T A
2016 2015
ZEB-RE _—_ZET—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®ETTT
Continuing operations BERSEER

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 8 TR A (BIEEEE) :
comprise:

Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REF 45,558 62,814
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes & i 18 F 51 21 £t 2 2,198 2,678
Termination benefits BRE T 377 4,221

48,133 69,713
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13. Discontinued Operation 13. ERIEREXET
The Directors of the Company resolved to discontinue the HRNERERKEESR A TNIEE - K
production and sales of its herbal tea products due to the NAIBESEATH_TE—=ZFtH—
unsatisfactory financial performance of the business of the HREELZXELNEERBE -

herbal tea products with effect from 1 July 2013.

As the herbal tea products segment represented a separate ERNEFRRXELMDBRER T AE

major line of business of the Group in prior years, the BE-—EEENETEERE =R

discontinuance of production and sales of herbal tea products REGWAEEMBEEBERNRNEZEZZ

has constituted a discontinued operation during the year ended =+ _A=1+—"HIEFERW
31 December 2013. ERIEEEER -

The results of the herbal tea products operation for the years RRAEMEBRBEEZE_ZET—XRKEKZ

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were as follows: E-—RFF+_A=1+—"BIEEFEEHN

FEWMT :

2016 2015

—EB-RE _—ZT—0F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Administrative expenses and loss before 1TEE A K F A& 18

taxation = @3)
Taxation BIE — —
Loss for the year FRNEE — )
No tax charge or credit arose on loss on discontinuance of the E RIEREXBENEBRES| ERE
operation. B E o
Net cash outflows on discontinued operation are as follows: ERIEREEBFRSMEOAT

2016 2015
—F-R"f —T-4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

g

Operating activities 4

EE - 3)

[
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

14.

15.

Dividends 14. I B

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 Hz_2—XR"&+=-_A=+—H1t

December 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the FETHERNIIBIREMEE - B

end of the reporting period (2015 nil). ERPEBETERREANKRE(ZE
—REE &) -

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share 15. BRER/(BE)

From continuing and discontinued operations REREEEXEEREORILES
xEB

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share KAGRBEEANEEGRERNREE

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the ER/(EE)Y R

following data:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
(Restated)
(#&E7)
Earnings/(loss) BRERN/(EE)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic and A& B AN F0
diluted earnings/(loss) per share BERr/ (EE) 43,704 (110,425)
2016 2015
—E-XFE ZT—AF
’000 ‘000
TR T
Number of shares IR &
Weighted average number of ordinary shares /& £ 7 ¥ #4582 7|/ (&518) B
for the purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per By 5B &Y IN#E 19 & @ AL Y
share HE 3,057,986 2,911,461
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B L i@AR & &
Options HA *}?ﬁ 499 508

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & #E & F/(Fi8) B HE4E
for the purpose of diluted earnings/(loss) BNEFHEBROEE
per share 3,058,485 2,911,969
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15. Earnings/(loss) Per Share (Continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted Earnings/(loss) per
share from continuing operations attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

15. #IRE R/ (EE) @)

REAFEEERS
ARABBEAEANBREFBERLERH 2
BREARBEERERBEFEL
EBEBZFANEN/(EIE) -

2016 2015
—E-RE _—T—-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TT
(Restated)
(K&E7)
Earnings/(loss) ER/(EE)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to KABIHEAEGAE
owners of the Company FRlm/(EE) 43,704 (110,425)
Less: S
Loss for the year from discontinued REDKRIEKEER 2 EE
operations — )
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic and LA & & £ 78 Fn 4 &
diluted earnings/(loss) per share BEBAR/(EE) 43,704 (110,422)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued operation
attributable to owners of the Company is RMBO cents per share
(2015: RMBO0.0001 cent per share), based on the loss for the
year from the discontinued operation of RMBO (2015:
RMB3,000) and the denominators detailed above for both basic
and diluted loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the diluted loss per
share is same as the basic loss per share. The computation of
diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2015
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

B Y R A O B 5 51 ey B R
MNEE SR AN/ (BB AR -

RECRIEEERY

ARRBEAEBHEERIEKLER
ZEREARBEEEAAREL
(ZE—RFE : 5k AR¥0.0001
W) ERBEREEEERZFNR
EEHARB(ZZE—HFE: A
R#3000) kR EXFHFRSRERR
HEBEMAZYBE -

HE-_ZT—RAF+ZA=1+—8H1t
FENBREEEESRATHRER
BER -BARTEBERESRLS TR
BE FILEFEBEE=-Z—1F
T+ A=+ BULEEESRBEE
BE TEBRIKOTESAARAM
BB A% #E -

—z-x55%135
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16. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 16. EER T E/THAEM S

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2015: ENERAR(ZE—RFE: £
seven) Directors and the Chief Executive were as follows: BIESRETETBRAEBEZHM 2 W0
T~
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE_F—XR"F+=-A=+—H
LEE
Mr. CHEN
Zheng He
Mr. CHEN (Chief
Qiyuan Executive = Mr. WONG Dr. NGAI Wai Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) Officer) Sin Yung Fung Kin Wing  Mr. LI Bida Total
BREREE HEBLE EHEREE REBHET RBELEE ToER4 At
(XR) (BR9HIE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRE ARETR AR®Tn AR%Tr AR%TR ARETR AR®TR
Emoluments paid or ARAHENB
receivable in respect of a NAMEED
person’s services as a HERB X

director, whether of the JE U ) BN &
Company or its subsidiary

undertaking
Fees we = = - 257 171 17 599
Other emoluments Hit i
Salaries Eral 1 - 124 1,029 - - - 1,153
Contributions to retirement & 778 7l
benefits scheme sHEE - 6 15 - - - 21
Total emoluments At e - 130 1,044 257 17 171 1,773
For the year ended 31 December 2015 8F_ZZ—1AF+-_RA=1+—H
I
Mr. CHEN
Zheng He
Mr. CHEN (Chief
Qiyuan ~ Ms. WAN Execuive ~ Mr.WONG  Dr.NGAIWai Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) Yuhua Officer) Sin Yung Fung KinWing ~ Mr.LIBida Total
REOREE BEXExt REBxE BEREE REERLT REXEE ZNEXE ait
(XF) (BER#1TE)

RMBIOO0O  RMBOO0  RMBOOD ~ RMB'OO0  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RMBO0D
ARETRL ARETR ARBTI ARBTLI ARBTL ARBTL ARETL ARETR

(note (a))
(Mi3E()
Emoluments paid or receivable in - 472 7 2 £ It &
respect of a person’s senvices A FHIE
as a director, whether of the ERBIAE
Company or its subsidlary GRS
undertaking
Fees ne - - - - 241 161 161 563
Other emoluments Hio#4
Salaries He 28 - - 116 964 - - - 1,080
Contributions to refirement BRENHE
benefits scheme 3 - - 6 14 - - - 20
Total emoluments Bite - - 122 978 24 161 161 1,663

Note (a):  The director resigned on 9 December 2015 Midt@: ZEFHR _Z—AF+_ANBEME
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16. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

(Continued)

There was no discretionary bonus provided to the directors for
the both years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

With effect from 9 December 2015, Mr. CHEN Zheng He is also
the chief executive of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above included those for services rendered by him as
the chief executive.

From 1 January 2015 to 9 December 2015, Ms. WAN Yuhua
was also the chief executive of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the Directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: nil).

16.EERNETETHRAEME

(%)

RZE—RFM_ZT—XR"F+A
—t+t—BESEBHHEENDL -

BE-ZET—RhF+_AALBELEW
BREBEEETARREERIT
B Ll EBEC TR EEY
EMITE RRIEEB& -

R-ZFE-—RFE—-A—HE-T— %
FT_ANBAHHE BEELLHE
EARRERENTE Ll BEZ
FHEREETEREATE RS
B o

HE-Z—A<+-A=t+—P1t#
EoARESEERATEENE
SEAEHREAANS(—F—HF
B )

25587137
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17. Employees’ Emoluments 17.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
four (2015: two) were Directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 16 above.
The emoluments of the remaining one (2015: three) individuals
were as follows:

B T &

hfis®mHFMALH O (ZF—
TEE MU RES REFHFHRN
A EPRE16ER - BRAE M — K (=
Z-HFE:Zf)&SFMALH
FMEBOT

2016 2015
—F-R"f —T-4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Salaries, allowances and benefits e 2B RER 165 82
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R {K B T 18§51 &£ % 8 17
Termination benefits B iR 18 7 = 575

173 674

Their emoluments were all within nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
of approximately RMB857,000 (2015: RMB837,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees) or other directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

HFEM2HENTTEEARS
857,000 + 48 ¥ 7 7% 7£.1,000,000 ( =
T—HF: AR 837,000) °

RBE-T-—AER-F-AF+
“ASt+-RLAESH AKE
LEEAHE T ARMEERBDH
AL (REEFRAT) S E
£ (ERBBMA RN NEALE
EEE BT L TR
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18. Share of Loss of a Joint Venture/Waiver of

Capital Injection in a Joint Venture

A joint venture, Bawang Tata, was formed in August 2015
between a subsidiary of the Company and an independent third
party. The Group had intended to develop a network platform
for distribution of its product through the joint arrangement. The
Group held 51% interest in Bawang Tata but no capital has
been injected by the Group. In December 2015, the Group
decided to terminate the project as several network platforms in
the PRC suffered a slump in their operations since the second
half of 2015 and therefore decided to dispose of the 51%
interest to an independent third party. By using equity method
of accounting, the Group had to share the expenses incurred
by Bawang Tata from August 2015 up to the date of disposal
amounted to approximately RMB696,000. The disposal was
completed on 30 December 2015 at a consideration of HK$1.
As the Group was waived from the injection of any capital into
the joint venture through the disposal arrangement, a gain on
disposal of approximately RMB696,000 was recognised in profit
or loss as waiver of capital injection in a joint venture for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

18. BRI &

AEE/RReS

S

o
P = 3
=N\ E

I >

\

=~

FITMHMERAASEEETFARNA
BUFE="FAR_ZE—RAENAKTL
MEERR AEERBBEER
e ABERETesHEER A&
EEHFEMM P RFESI%MRE
BREEFTAER - ERRRLRE
BEAE_ZT—AFTEENESE
TE AEBR-_ZE—RAF+=A
RERIEZAETEEB I B51%/ %
EREEBERBYFE = - KAE
mEZE  AEBEEHEHE LM
E-_E-—AFNANRERALZ
BN A AR 696,000 A T —
AFE+-_A=1tHUREBBE1TE
IR K 49 A R 696,000 5 FE & 18
FEZYPHER BREEEWHH

EEZEFAMEKIANE R HE
% REARERRNEEANAR
¥ 696,000 Z e RO ERIF =T —
AF+-_A=+—HHNBEZTER-

—z2—x55$%139
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —ZF—

19. Y15 - BB KRR

Office Immature
Leasehold Motor equipment Display Bearer bearer Construction
Buildings Machinery improvements  vehicles and others  furniture plants plants in progress Total
LEHE BAE THAN
EE 1 BRXH BHIA REREM RBTRSE LEMEY LEMEY ERIR @zt
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARKTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARBTR
COST BA
At1 January 2015 (Restated) W -—Z—RH%E
—A—R(BE5) 5,494 116,482 142,020 11,024 21,607 937 47 110 77,666 375,387
Exchange realignment EXAE - - - 413 164 - - - - 577
Additions NE - 329 391 - 334 - - 146 142 1,342
Disposals & - (14) - 1) (209) - - - - (314)
Transfer from constructionin - & BER T2
progress - 1,447 2,366 - 1,024 - - - (4,837) -
At31December2015and  H-E—H%
1 January 2016 (Restated) +-—A=1+—-B}
ZR-RE
—A-RA(BE5) 5,494 118,244 144,777 11,346 22,920 937 47 256 72,971 376,992
Exchange realignment EREE - - - 462 67 - - - - 529
Additions NE - 3 16 769 87 - - 150 544 1,569
Disposals He - 2,602) - (465 (2,975) - [l - - (6,044)
iteof - - (10200 - - - - - - (00
Transfer from constructionin  #&E£R T
progress - 60 320 - 55 - - - (435) -
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+ZR=ft-H 5,494 115,705 134,913 12,112 20,154 937 45 406 73,080 362,846
ACCUMULATED RHE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At1 January 2015 (Restated) A =Z—h%E
—A—B(EEY]) 1,072 53,280 46,033 10,120 17,728 819 15 - 20,843 149,906
Exchange realignment FRMEEE - - - 346 103 - - - - 449
Depreciation provided for the 2 #2183 2 A
year 248 3,933 11,688 500 893 15 3 - - 17,280
Impairment loss recognised 1 £ B %34
in profit or loss — 16,005 22,947 220 1,031 21 - - 14,140 54,364
Eliminated on disposals B 54, 3 & - (10) - @) (189 - - - - (290)
At 31 December 2015and R -ZE—T1F
1January 2016 (Restated) +-A=+—B&
ZR-RF
—R—-B(EE3) 1,320 73,208 80,668 11,095 19,561 855 18 - 34,983 221,708
Exchange realignment FRFTERE - - - 397 42 - - - - 439
Depreciation provided BRRERZ
for the year mE 247 3,077 8,184 163 224 1 2 - — 11,898
Eliminated on disposals e - (1,812) - (o8 2119 - - - - 4,359)
Write-off EXEE - - 4,083) - - - - - - (4,083)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-RE
+-A=+-H 1,567 74,473 84,769 11,227 17,7114 856 20 - 34,983 225,609
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-A=1+-H 3,927 41232 50,144 885 2,440 81 25 406 38,097 137,237
At 31 December 2015 R-E—1F
+-A=+-H 4,174 45,036 64,109 251 3,359 82 29 256 37,988 155,284
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Buildings EE

Machinery 25

Leasehold improvements KERENRRE
Motor vehicles EHTA

Office equipment and others WMAERMEREAM
Display furniture RTEE

Bearer plants EEMEY

In 2015, the Directors of the Company has reassessed the
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
resolved that the useful life of machinery should be adjusted
from 10 years to 15 years in view of the low utilisation rate of
machinery with the shrinking revenue. The change in accounting
estimate decreased the depreciation charge and loss before
taxation since 2015.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress and immature bearer plants until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use. Upon completion and
commissioning for operation, depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates specified above.

As at 31 December 2016, buildings with carrying values of
approximately RMB3,927,000 (2015: nil) has been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors of the
Company conducted a review of the property, plant and
equipment which were used in the continuing operations and
determined that those assets were impaired with reference to
their value in use. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
RMB54,364,000 has been recognised under other expenses of
continuing operations in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. The value in use calculation was determined based on the
financial budgets covering a eleven-year period which was
referenced to the estimated useful life of the assets, and a pre-
tax discount rate of 15.27% per annum, approved by the
management of the Group.

10. % - BE RFRE @)

FERERYE BELRREBHK
REBBEEBFRBKEERAT
FIEE A IR ERORFTE -

20 years 204
15 years 154
10 years 104
5-8 years 5-84F
5 years 54

2 years 2%
3-25 years 3-254F

“E-REAR ARAREFHY
X BEAEERENEFEASF
RETEHNGE ZRIKERB
B B SRR AR R T (A RAK - BUR
EREERENERSHHETFH#
EE+RF %S BFE2ERE
—E-RF+ZA=+—BRLT
FEERRBAERE -

EEZTIREMTKANEYEE TG
RWE BEEEEEE LT
Wiz Al fE MR - B HE % T kiR
NEER  $R EXEEE kX
FItARHIEITE -

RZE—-—ARF+ZA=+—8"
AEEHEAEAEEHNARE
3,927,000 THEEY (Z T — R F :
E)UBRBITHETHOREEE -

BHE—_f2—AF+-_A=+—H1
FERN ARAZEEHARBEL
EEBNYE BMERIBETT
BEVYUNZEENERAEBEERAE
ERENZ2E - BREBAHARE
54,364,000 H HER NG A BR X
RELCEEKNEMBRARN - HE
ENFEREBEERNEEEEERE
HEEMNGBTFEAFR R AT
WEAL27% M w2 &)+ — F E B 7%
TEERAE -

—g-~&5%141
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20. Biological Assets

Biological assets represent the growing herbs in the cultivation
base located in the PRC.

20. £ EE

EMEERBUNPBEARENEE

HEipERmahELo

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR%®Tr

(Restated)

(&5

At 1 January n—H—H 426 426
Changes in fair value less costs to sell ARBEREEKERY

81825 29 116

Plantation expenditure EEY 14 29

Herbs harvested during the year FRUER & % (12) (149)

At 31 December R+-_A=+—~H 457 426

Plantation expenditure comprises those costs that are directly
attributable to the cultivation of herbs including seeds, fertilisers,
pesticides, direct labour, operating lease charges on farmland
and other direct costs.

Consumable biological assets which only have one harvest in
each planting are classified as current asset. Bearer plants
providing multiple harvests over years are classified as non-
current asset.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 24 (2015 (Restated):
44) hectares of growing herbs.

Biological assets are stated at fair value less costs to sell at the
end of the reporting period as estimated by an independent
appraiser using the net present value approach whereby
projected future net cash flows were discounted to provide a
current market value of the biological assets. The fair value
measurements of biological assets are categorised within level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers among any
levels of the fair value hierarchy for both years.

BEXHERUEERRBRBES

BEENKABERT  EH-

e 7
=%

EEREAL EANKEHEERNU

NEMBERKAR -

BREERELE—

WK 2 8 FE 1t

E#@ﬁ?wﬁﬁgﬁumaﬁﬁ ﬂﬁzﬁﬁ

Rt RMKZEEEEYS

FRBEE °

W=B—XF+=A
EBEAULE(=F T

EA) 440

PR

RERARNEVEEARAEE
MEBEKRAETHE REEREA
B REEED AR RE T EETTR
- WA RFFREREETH
B Ut EZEMEENRTTS
BE-EMEEZAAEBEAER

EREIRAABES

- R B

B 2rBEFMZELETAE

i o
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20. Biological Assets (Continued) 20. £ EE @)

The following unobservable inputs were used in level 3 fair value
measurements of the Group’s biological assets as at 31

UWTAER - Z—X"NF+_A=+—
BERAYMEEFIRAALBETE

December 2016: AR ERER
Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs Relations of unobservable inputs
(weighted average) to fair value
FHBEEEHR THBRERSEE (MEFIE) TOUBRENEAREBEZBERE
Growing herbs yield 750-850 (769) per year The higher the growing herbs yield,
— kg per hectare the higher the fair value
TE1E 2 E UK 5 4 750-850 (769) BE P EZEWRKBS
—BAETR AREBEES
Growing herbs price RMB31 per kg The higher the market price, the
higher the fair value
BEPEEER BFRARKS1IT BETPEEMEBES
AREBEBES
Discount rate 11% (11%) per annum The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value
IR & FFE11% (11%) BEzHEEFTREES

The following unobservable inputs were used in level 3 fair value
measurements of the Group’s biological assets as at 31
December 2015 (Restated):

Range of unobservable inputs

NREEBR
ATRR -_ZE—RAF+_-_A=+—
HEMEMEEFIN AL EBENE
ZRABRER(EES)

Relations of unobservable inputs

Unobservable inputs (weighted average) to fair value
FHBEEEHR THBERENEE (MEFHE) FTABEERNEAREEZBR
Growing herbs yield 400-550 (542) per year The higher the growing herbs yield,
— kg per hectare the higher the fair value
TE1E 2 E UK 4 400-550 (542) BEHEZEWRKBS
—BAETR AREBEES
Growing herbs price RMB22 per kg The higher the market price, the
higher the fair value
BEPEEER BTrAR%227T BEsTPEEMEBES
ARBEBES
Discount rate 11% (11%) per annum The higher the discount rate, the
lower the fair value
#rif = FFE11% (11%) BEZHPEEFRIMS

DR EEBR
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144

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe B mRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

20. Biological Assets (Continued)

The discount rates used in the valuation of the biological assets
in the PRC at the end of the reporting period were based on the
market-determined pre-tax rate.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the biological
assets, the highest and best use of the biological assets is their
current use.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of biological
assets on recurring basis:

20. £ EE @)

RERBR ARTPBEEENEY
BEMEEABZAAXIEEANTS
BEZBAFE-

HERTR E-—FEMAELENR
B EBEEMEEZAAEBEM
FOAVEEZRERERERHE
B ZERE-

EMEEZBRMEEIRAAEE
BYK:

2016 2015

ZB-RE —ZT—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSTR AR®TT

(Restated)

(K&&E7)

At 1 January Kn—AH—H 426 426

Addition NE 14 29
Changes in fair value due to MeEEEmMEL L

transformation N EEE 29 16

Transfer to inventory BERFE (12) (149)

At 31 December R+t A=+—H 457 426

The above changes in fair value for the year ended 31
December 2016 recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB29,000 (2015 (Restated): RMB116,000) is presented as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and is wholly attributable to the change in unrealised gains
or losses relating to biological assets held at the end of the
reporting period.

The Group is exposed to demand risks arising from
environmental and climatic changes. To mitigate these risks, the
Group does not rely on the self-supply of herbs, but also
sources herbs from a number of external suppliers.

HE-_Z—XF+-_A=+—81t
FE UWERBEZPERZAALE
BHEHHARBE2900(ZFE—HE
B (& &ES]) : AR¥116,000) ° R
HREPRBFEEVWEERBZR
FERFAESEE & -

AEE@HRBEMAIKRE(LCHRKD
FXAR- SERELRAR A&EHE
TEFERBEBROTEEE  FET
SR —EHEZINEHEREING ©
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Inventories 21. 7 &
2016 2015
—E—XREF —EF—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Raw materials B R 13,057 10,879
Work-in-progress b La 929 1,583
Finished goods RN 15,354 19,267
Packing materials and consumable goods 8 % # ¥ &2 34 7 & 12,487 9,180
41,827 40,909
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was an RBEEZZT-—R"F+ZHAH=+—

increase in the net realisable value following a decrease in
selling expenses. As a result, a reversal of write-down of
inventories of approximately RMB243,000 (2015:
RMB1,637,000) has been recognised and included in cost of
sales in the current year.

BEFEAR AJE2RFERNES
A TEBmEFA Bl HARE
243000( ZFE—HFE: AR
1,637,000) v FEHBEFHEE R E
WHEAMNRAFEBERHEERAE

q:l o
Trade and Other Receivables 22. B R HEMEKRIE
2016 2015
—E—-RHF —E—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T T
(Restated)
(&5
Trade receivables 2 5 MWK IA 56,288 69,193
Less: allowance for impairment B BB ERFBEREEE
of trade receivables (11,946) (9,521)
44,342 59,672
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials & & & M &L 78 1~ & 1,516 1,655
Short-term prepaid advertising fee RHFBRESE ﬁﬁ 212 44
Litigation costs receivable (note 35 (a)) FEAE e HSZ %18 (B 3£ 35(q)) 16,101 —
Other receivables H b jE W 5K IE 3,413 3,423
Total trade and other receivables BohEMEINRIES 65,584 64,794
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to

2.BESRH

i FE U FXTE (i)
AEBMAHESRFIHEEHE

its trade customers. B30EQQK o
(a) The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net (@) BERERZI2EBHREKX
of allowance for impairment of trade receivables presented HHBRBRBE RERBARN D
based on the invoice date, which approximates the T -
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period.
2016 2015
—E-RFE Z—ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR®EF T
Less than 3 months L R31E A 23,952 39,592
More than 3 months but less than %318 A 1B
6 months LR 6{E A 11,203 15,719
More than 6 months but less than %E; 6 & A 18
12 months E/\\\12fl A 2,249 3,651
More than 12 months 12{& A 6,938 710
44,342 59,672

(b) The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net

(b) REZNHB 22 E 5 EKK

of impairment, presented based on the due date at the HHBRBRE RERBARN D
end of the reporting period: franT -
2016 2015
—E-XRFE ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Neither past due nor impaired Bl HA 26,380 40,301
Less than 3 months past due wHE D3 ME A 14,973 14,213
More than 3 months but less than #EIsE=6ME A
6 months past due 1,797 2,666
More than 6 months but less than w6 = 121@ A
12 months past due 290 215
More than 12 months past due mEZ M 12{8 A 902 2,277
17,962 19,371
44,342 59,672
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 22. B 5 & H i fE W FIE (@)
(b) (Continued) (b) (i)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate N 4 B ORI E B FE UK R IE B
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no MNBZ7EBP K& &
recent history of default. B HA T SR ED B o
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are REBBAR ASEEHE EH
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately BEELHRERECE SRR
RMB17,962,000 (2015: RMB19,371,000) which are past HIEESKEEBEEBEN AR K
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group 17,962,000( ZE—HFE : A
has not provided for impairment loss. Receivables that R #19,371,000) ° #1 B8 18 & R,
were past due but not impaired relate to a number of BEMERFEEE TELRR
independent customers that have a good track record B ZERBPHAEFRHNX
with the Group. Based on past experience, management SuBREF BREAERT
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in mEBRNEIL BZEERDE
respect of these balances as there has not been a RATAEEWE - BIEMNUE
significant change in credit quality and the balances are ,2% B EEEHEESTRZE
still considered to be fully recoverable. The Group does EHREDRBRERE AEBEYW
not hold any collateral over the trade and other £ gt 5% U N E b W F B
receivables. BRAEEMERR -
(¢) Movement in the allowance for impairment for trade (c) BSEUWFKEMNREREE
receivables: @J
2016 2015
—E-XRF —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EF T AR®BT T
At 1 January n—H—H 9,521 4,712
Impairment loss recognised ERRZBERK 2,425 4,809
At 31 December R+—_HA=+—H 11,946 9,521
At 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade receivables of RZZB-RFF-A=T
approximately RMB11,946,000 (2015: RMB9,521,000) —B AKREBREOAR®
were individually determined to be impaired. The 11,946,000( — = — & & &

individually impaired receivables related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that full amount of these receivables is unlikely to be
recovered. Consequently full provision for these doubtful
debts was recognised. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

AE%9521OOO)E’JT’Z%W£M&

RIB & E R IR IR ST R E B
5‘E°§x%ﬁfﬁ1%5@2ﬁﬁ’€lh§%
REEFBAVKRE  mA
EREFHERAETREZHKD
FEUW I Attt A S BB
ZEREME2E8BE A&
BYERZEEHRIFTETMEE
e

—2- 55147
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23. Pledged Bank Deposit/Deposit with Bank/ 23. 4K 17 IR 17 17 ;K/IR 1T 7 7K/
Bank Balances and Cash RITHEBRREE
Pledged bank deposits EHEBTHER
Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to banks BT EFERIEEE RESIRTH
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits REBE BSEFEREHARETH —
amounting to RMB10,000 (2015: RMB nil) have been pledged BB BERALFETESETNE
to secure short-term bank loans and are therefore classified as HAE R ARA10,000( = —HF
current assets. mALEE D BRBEE -
The pledged deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.10% (2015: ERRITFEREEFNNER1.10%
nil) per annum. (Z=—HhHF &)
Deposit with bank BITFER
As at 31 December 2016, deposit with bank of R_E—RF+_A=+—H8" 4R
RMB20,000,000, with maturity in May 2017 (2015: 71 F A R #20,000,0000=F —H
RMB20,000,000, with maturity in May 2016), carries interest at FE : AR ®20,000,000 £ -ZF—
fixed rate of 1.75% (2015: 2.75%) per annum. NERLAFEH)ER_E—+FHA
HE BEEFMERITIE%(ZF—
HEFE :275%) °
Bank balances and cash HBITEERRS&
As at 31 December 2016, cash at bank carries interest at RZE—XRNRF+_A=Z=+—H"
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates of 0.001% to 1% RTHESESHBETERZHF
(2015: 0.001% to 0.35%) per annum. FE00IBEI%B (T —HFE:
0.001% £ 0.35%) 5T & | & o
24. Trade and Other Payables 24. B 5 & H fth FE {5 7N IE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Trade payables 2 5 B RIE 33,646 33,834
Receipt in advance TE W SR IR 14,306 29,595
Payable for acquisition of property, FERT Y2 BE MR
plant and equipment BEEH 4,287 14,152
Promotion fee payable ENEEER 14,875 19,042
Accrued payroll JERTE 874 1,012
Other payables and accrual HihENRERIERE A 59,133 74,253
Total trade and other payables EHRAEMENFKIEBEER 127,121 171,888
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24. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 24. B 5 K H fit FE S FRIE (@)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented BIERXZHE A2 28 5 EN
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: RIBEREWMEARZEB DT -

2016 2015

—E—RF —EF—RHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR%®Tr

Within 1 month or on demand 118 B AR B sk iz @ AE R 25,540 32,856

After 1 month but within 3 months 118 A 1B 31E A R 2| Hf 8,106 978

33,646 33,834

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. The HHEEG THEEHNTNI0ED

Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure He RXEEFBEDMBRER fi
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. RERFMBERNIRIBREEE

25. Provisions 25. FHiIR 1R

Provision for litigation
FEAFHIREA

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STR AR®Tr
At 1 January Hn—A—H 3,826 2,044
Provision recognised TR E R 722 3,487
Payment made B~ 3IE (2,045) (1,705)
At 31 December R+_A=+—H 2,503 3,826
Provision for litigation is made based on management best MM FEARTH - FRAAFTIRBRAEE BA

estimates and judgement, as described in note 4. Details of the EBIEERUOGEET A E - FIAF

litigations are set out in note 35. R 5ES5 ©
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26. Deferred Tax

The following is the deferred tax liability recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

i SE i 18

= BEIE BB B R F R KA
ME BT

Undistributed
profits of PRC
subsidiary
B B B A |
R B R E
RMB’000
AR®EFTT

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 JrAPE=S
+=-—A=+—8
OB A E S R K

Credit to profit or loss

—HE-A—A -

2,031
(2,031)

At 31 December 2016 N-=E

—R"FE+=-ZA=+—H -

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB719,596,000 (2015 (restated):
RMB1,139,996,000) and RMB33,358,000 (2015: RMB29,806,000)
for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong respectively.
The tax losses incurred by the subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC will expire in five years from the year in which the loss
originated, while the ones incurred by the subsidiaries in Hong
Kong will not expire under current tax legislation in Hong Kong.
Certain tax losses of approximately RMB421,612,000 expired
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB424,810,000 (2015 (restated):
RMB428,957,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

RZE—RF+ZA= ‘|’ H K
EEFEFRABREEEETHER

B3 AR B AT R M FR S BB o B4
AR #719,506,0000 - T — A FE
(72 &E5]) : AR #1,139,996,000) 1
AR #33,358,000( - & — HFEZ (&
E5]): AR#29806,000)  H A

HMPABEXIOMBRARIMELEZR
BEEBR BB EBKEBEIBRZ
FEREH MEFENHE ARG
EENREEBEEBITERIET BRI
M ENmMER FEHARK
421,612,000 R B BEEZE =T —
NE+-_AZ=Z+—BUEFEERE®m-

NR—_E—RFEF+-_A=+—H K
SEUHRNEREEZEENAAR
#424,810,000( 2 —HFE (K=
Bl : AR #428,957,000) ° I & (£
MEMHREEEEZEMERZE
ERIEEE EAGEAEEER
HaflalESErEMERTEE
BReMFEA -
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Deferred Tax (Continued)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to undistributed profits of the
PRC subsidiaries in prior years amounted to approximately
RMB2,031,000 as at 31 December 2015. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Directors of the Company
considered that the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB2,031,000 was reversed.

26.

I 3 74 18 (@)

BEREIRE BT NE—HA
— B HPETRE KD EFE
SEMBRFARINRBDERESR
BELEFEBHRERTEEERRMERE
—ET-RAFt+-_A=1+—BHWEKEA
B mRERTMWUNFEEEN R
$ % AR #2031,0007T ° A RQ Al E
B AEE R AL B B O F e e
MEENKE MAEBIUTERMEE
BEAERORETSERB - Bt
R_E—XRNE+_A=+—H#E
% A R #2,031,0007T B IE & BT 15 73
B[ o

Bank Borrowings 27. RITE R
2016 2015
—E-XFE ZZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETTT
Secured bank loans (note a) ERIFTER(HFa) 5,610 —

Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements):

—FR

Within one year

ANBEE(RBERBERENS
EREH)

5,610 —

Note a:

As at 31 December 2016, bank loans with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB5,600,000 (2015: nil) bore interest at fixed rate and due within one years. The
fixed rate borrowing carried interest rates at 5.66% per annum during the year ended
31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, bank loans with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB10,000 (2015: nil) bore interest at fixed rate and due within one years. The fixed
rate borrowing carried interest rates at 4.35% per annum during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Mt ita

HE-_Z—X "+ _A=Z+—H1t - EELBEYH
ARH®5600,000T (ZE—REE : 8)MIRTE
RAEREENE UE—FRNIH-BEZT
—RNE+-A=Z+—BLFE BEHRERTE
F & 55.66% °

BE-_Z—R"F+-_A=Z+—HL EE2EY
AR®10,000(ZE—AFE  S)WRITER
MEAEEME WE—FRIB-BE=F—
ANE+TZA=THLFE BEAREREF
& 54.35% °

—z-x55%151
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27. Bank Borrowings (Continued) 27. IRITBE K (4
Note b: B 5EDb -
The Group’s bank borrowings at the end of each reporting period were secured or REBENERETEREHAREIENTHAEE
guaranteed by the followings: R
As at 31 December 2016, a borrowing of the Group with outstanding balance of BE-_ZT—XNF+-A=+—B81t XEEGHE
approximately RMB5,600,000 (2015: nil) was guaranteed by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and by RIEHANERBS560000T(ZE—HEE - 8)Hh
a related party in which the party was wholly owned by the Controlling Shareholders RERAESE RHBEBM AR ZHHERRES
and was secured by the property of a subsidiary as set out in note 19. R - WIAMTFE19RT R AV BT B8 ¥ ZE AT AR -
As at 31 December 2016, a borrowing of the Group with outstanding balance of BE_Z—R"F+_A=+—81L A&EEFH
approximately RMB10,000 (2015: nil) was secured by the Group’s pledged bank KEHARE10000TC(ZE—HFEE  E)NE
deposits as set out in note 23. M 23 AT R AN R B R ITIF SRFTHEAR ©
Note c: Bt sEc :
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the undrawn bank loan facilities of REHRBPR AEFRFTENETERBEDLHA
approximately RMB4,400,000 (2015: nil). R¥54,400,000C(ZE—HFE : &) -
28. Share Capital and Reserves 28. AN k1
(a) Share capital (@) B&#F
Number of
shares
KRG EE
‘000 RMB’000
T % AR T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FAEITT01 2 Rk
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December RZE—HRF—H—H"
2015 and 2016 —E-RFERZZE-RF
+ZR=+—H 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: & 37T M & 2 :
At 1 January 2015 —hFE—H—H 2,910,971 256,639
Issue of shares under share option BITIREZ AR E
scheme (note i) (B 31D 840 66
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+_A=1+—H 2,911,811 256,705
Issue of shares by way of placing AR N BETRE
(note i) (B i) 250,000 21,173
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"F+=-H=+—8H 3,161,811 277,878




FIER(EE)ERERAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—%

28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share capital (Continued)

Note i:
Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2015, options were exercised to
subscribe for 840,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of
HK$84,000, equivalent to approximately RMB66,000, which was credited to
share capital. RMB1,627,000 has been transferred from the capital reserve to
the share premium account in accordance with policy set out in note 3. No
options were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Note ii:
Issue of shares by private placement under general mandate

On 11 May 2016, arrangements were made for a private placement to
independent private investors of 250,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company, at a price of HK$0.31 per share representing a discount of
approximately 19.48% to the closing market price of the Company’s shares on
11 May 2016.

Pursuant to subscription agreements of the same date, six Subscribers
subscribed for 250,000,000 new shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company at a
price of HK$0.31 per share. The proceeds were used for repayment of the
existing shareholders’ loans and to provide additional working capital for the
Group. These new shares were issued under the general mandate granted to
the directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May
2016 and rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

Nature and purpose of reserves

() Share premium
The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the
share premium are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the

grant date fair value of unexercised share options

granted to employees of the Company that has been

recognised in accordance with the accounting policy

set out in note 3.

SR BHmRMEE (B)

—NFt+-A=t+—BLtFE

nv-ﬁ

28. IR AN K f#18 c|)

(a)

(b)

B & (4%)

B i

BEBRESAMBITHIRE

EA%‘zi—i EFFE+=ZA=+—HBLEE
CEREREABRBTERERBEAD

784o,oooﬂx BRXNYUEOARBET

84,000 (#8 & M 49 A R #66,000) 2 &1 A

A& AN o AR R P RESAT L ) & AT B R - YA

R #1,627,000 B &£ 1t & AN 8 2 IR AR

B-BE_E—R"Et+-_A=+—BI*#
EARITIEHAAE -
B i -

E-REEGATRAARERER

—E-XERAT B AQFALAK
& & B & E 8 /0.1 ¥ #9 250,000,000 %
BE BEEEBKAE0N BT EEAEERE
BRANREZEE-_Z—X"FRA+—BHK
B ITEL19.48% °

KEBRHERBRMNEE RS SN REE
LA B RZ0.31 T B K EAERE T HE RO
75 15 #9250,000,000 9 7 A% © Hﬁ?ﬁ&@aﬁﬁﬁ
REMKBRROERNBELEEES - E
EREZZE— A NFERA=-+-AREFAF
AELEREF —BERKETRITOTR
REMRZEESHTEZEREMES -

fEmERERRAE

(i) BXERE
AKRaEAaERERS
MAESRaEEEER)
Fr# & - h#%%ﬂ,/ﬁ
KRB BEE  AQ
Bee HEEHB %%i‘“ﬂfﬂid

%m%% BRIAR
Qk$mﬁﬁh% ﬁ
%%o
(i) EXGEE

BT AReEB &R E
RITRH D - HERE
THHOR R BEREH
A3 XA B AT R
RENHEHER -

—z=—x54%153
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28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ili) PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves are established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of the PRC
subsidiary of the Group, Bawang Guangzhou.
Transfers to the reserves are approved by the
directors of Bawang Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer at
least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting prior year
losses), as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and
the articles of association of the entity. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder. No appropriation
to statutory reserves were made by the PRC
subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015, as they recorded losses for both
years.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Merger reserve

(v)

(vi)

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to USD12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the Controlling Shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary as
detailed in note 34(). The amounts are estimated by
discounting the nominal value of the non-interest
bearing loans to the subsidiary at an effective interest
rate.

28. IR N K f#18 c|)

(b) fE 01 H & A& (|)
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions 29. 1«/{ REZELURDAE

(a) Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Directors of the Company approved a Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme on 10 December 2008. On 8 June 2009,
the Company conditionally granted certain Pre-IPO share
options to the Directors, senior management and
employees under this Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The
exercise of these share options would entitle two of the
Company’s Directors to subscribe for an aggregate of
4,200,000 shares of the Company, and forty of senior
management and employees for an aggregate of
10,332,000 shares. According to the grant letters signed
by the Company and the beneficial individuals, the
exercise price of each share under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is either at par value of HK$0.1 (four
people under this tranche including two the then
directors), or at HK$1.19, representing a 50% discount to
the offer price of HK$2.38 under the global offering (thirty-
eight people under this tranche). Each option granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has a vesting
period of one to five years, commencing from the listing
date and the options are exercisable until 8 June 2019.

MRS
(a) HROBEAMEREHE
EEEN-_SSN\E+=-A+

At EE R ARAEEINER
g - R ZZEZTAE AN
H XRRBHKREHLBEREE X
ﬁ%mw%%%ﬁ%W%
CTEREEENEREER
TETEBRARESAIER
%°ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%$“
AMBEERBEARA A& H
4,200,000 f% - BA &40% = %&
éi%ﬂ:u{@,g\wua%$
& #£10,332,000 i% Hy #E ﬂ *E
BARAAEGEZE AR
BPEHG BRXRAREEAE
%%ﬁ%ﬁTmthkﬁﬁ%
BAREM®MEHIT01UATLL
AR BEMEBES)IOBET
119 B2 BEETHERE
78 J02.38 9T :#50% (38 A £ It
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—%

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

29. 1«/{ BRES

7/\£‘E+—

R=t—HiE%E

RGO AE

(Continued) W5 @
(@) Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued) (a) BROMBERMERES
(#8)
Details of specific categories of Pre-IPO Share Options BRXAFRAREREIRES 2
Scheme are as follows: ERUNE
Number of Contractual
Date of grant instruments Vesting period life of options
BFBEH BREHE EEH BRESHH
Options granted to
directors 8 June 2009 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BTERNERE ZEZAFEXRANE —ETNFLA=ZHBF—F T+
8 June 2009 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—EENFRANB —EENFLA=HRBHMF T4
8 June 2009 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETAFAANB ZEENFLAZHRBH=F +4F
8 June 2009 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZEZAFEXRANE ZETNFEA=HBFEF T+
8 June 2009 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—EENFRANB —EENFLA=HRBHAF T+
Options granted to
employees 8 June 2009 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
BT iEEMERE ZEZAFEXRANE —ETNFLA=ZHBF—F T+
8 June 2009 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—EENFRANB —EENFLA=HRBHMF T+
8 June 2009 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETAFSNANB ZEENFLAZHRBH=F +4F
8 June 2009 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZZEZAFEXRANE ZETNFEA=HBFEF T+
8 June 2009 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—EENFRANB —EENFLA=HRBHAF T+
Total share options
granted 14,532,000

BT BRERH
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(Continued)

(b) The following table disclosed the movements of the
Company’s share options held by Directors and
employees for the years ended 31 December 2016 and

20. LR BEEELURGHE
MRS @

(b) TERBEHRE-_T— A ER_
E—FE+-_A=+—HI&E
EEEEEFRAERECCE

2015: &) :
Number of share options
BREZAR
Exercised Forfeited
during the during the
Outstanding year ended year ended Outstanding at
at 1January 31 December 31 December 31 December
Option type 2015 2015 2015 2015 and 2016
i R-ZB-5HF
—E-fF M=—B-—RF
—A—H —E-RE —E-h% +=ZHA=+-H
BRESR e R AT FRTE FRHPEW e R AT 68
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme & X AR & &5l
i A 2,834,000 (840,000 (340,000) 1,654,000
Exercisable at the end of the W 2 R EIKR AT 1T
reporting period H B8 P i 2,834,000 1,654,000
Weighted average exercise MHEFHITHEE
price HK$0.62 HK$0.1 HK$1.19 HK$0.77

The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 2.43 years (2015: 3.43

years).

RZE—RNRE+_A=+—
B mARITEEREDIEF
BRGBE N AE2L3F(ZE—
REE  3434F) -
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30. Statement of Financial Position of the 30. XA =) B #& AR R &R
Company
2016 2015
—E—XREF —_E—FHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B & ARBTRT AR®Tx

Non-current assets kRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RIELETHE R A
& - —
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG @] a 3,653 39,372
3,653 39,372
Current assets REBEE
Other receivable H b E B 16,417 239
Bank balances and cash RITEGFT RS 399 1,442
16,816 1,681
Current liability REBAE
Other payables H A jE < ;1B 3,915 3,338
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE/(BE)
R 12,901 (1,657)
Total assets less current liability EEAERARBAR 16,554 37,715
Net assets BEEEE 16,554 37,715
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A% X 277,878 256,705
Reserves & b (261,324) (218,990)
Total equity S 16,554 37,715
Notes: B 5E
(a) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and not expected to be (@) ZAEEBEEE AKX+ -_EANRN

recoverable within the next twelve months. el E -
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30. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows:

30. AN B B #& AR R 3/ @)

Bt : ()

b REEFREHEROT

Share Capital Translation =~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
PR A5 E B E ERMHE E-g - wE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETF T AR T AR F T ARBFT
At 1 January 2015 RZT—RF
—A—H 1,354,742 4,966 (110,531) (1,355,156) (105,979)
Recognition of equity- FER AP REAEE I LA
settled share-based 1% 0 A BT K
payments 1,627 (1,627) — — —
Forfeiture of vested 2 W B O DA R 4
equity-settled share- B AR B AR
based payments B 1~ 5k - (525) - 525 —
Total comprehensive FHEBA (L) 4858
income (expense) — — 32 (113,043) (113,011)
At 31 December 2015 and =L —FHF
1 January 2016 +=-—A=+—8H
k=T —R4EF
—A—H 1,356,369 2,814 (110,499) (1,467,674) (218,990)
Issue of shares by way DA R BEITIRE
of placing (note 28) (Mt 5x28) 44,462 - - — 44,462
Share issue expenses BREETEA (181) - - — (181)
Total comprehensive 2HE(BEA) AR
(expense) income — — (46) (86,569) (86,615)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZTE—RF
+=-—A=+—8~ 1,400,650 2,814 (110,545) (1,554,243) (261,324)
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31. Lease Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—%

31 HHYRIE

—RETZA=t—RLEFE

The Group as lessee XEEEERBA
2016 2015
—E—XRE —EF—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR®ET T

Minimum lease payments paid under RIBELEHENE N 2 xIEH
operating leases during the year: A

Production premises HEESM 6,984 7,773
Office premises MRS 615 908
7,599 8,681
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments REBWMHB R REB AT RENK

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

EHHOZRRKEESAESHRG

operating leases which fall due as follows: AR
2016 2015
—RE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEF T AR®T T
Within one year —FUR 6,461 5,377

In the second to fifth year inclusive —EFERF

(BREEMEEN) 10,380 422
Over five years HEEM F 495 525
17,336 6,324

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its production premises and office. Leases
are negotiated for original terms ranging from 1 to 30 years (2015:
1 to 30 years). Rentals are fixed over the terms of respective

leases.

TH(=

KEHeREAEESANEARE
TEBRELBABIOEEEZER-
S HmzBHESEN T —F2

T — £¢§=—¢§E;

F) HEESHEOYRNEETE -
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32. Capital Commitments

ERRE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—R%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®ET T
Capital expenditure in respect of the AEFBRRP RO G
acquisition of property, plant and BEME BELIREN
equipment contracted but not provided in & RN &
the consolidated financial statements 2,406 7,553

33. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(a)

(b)

The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

Hong Kong

The Group also maintains a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong in accordance with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and
related regulations. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Scheme, of which the contribution
was matched by employees and subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per employee.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contribution described above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB2,198,000 (2015: RMB2,678,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans.

R KRR E SR

(@) FEXEME

RETFEBEBEBER HE
MEARZEATEHERE M
ﬁﬁ%%@%Zmﬁ1mLW
mAMFE(ZEE D - B
E_é/ //\iﬁ Iﬁz_igﬁ
ttﬁEZqui‘Hﬁ*“ié?ﬂﬂBZﬁ%é
BEAAXNERKEEN 2
BIKE -

(b) ERME

RIERSEAEeE([8RE
3] B AB RGO AR E
KEBNTAMEFEBKENS
BRERUBESFE - BIE
PEEICEERASEEEME
EsH BAXTAZGZES
BH AEBEIZABIE Z5%
MErEER - BHREITHHER
PR A& T1,500

AEBERT i HRE TER
MESSE T I RKREEAMERK
BAEAF o

T%/\*’\%%EPZ BT OARK
2,198000(ZFE—HFE: AR¥
2,678,000) ° EMEIWEZ%J%U%H
EM—EB DB ZHR -
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34. Related Party Transactions M. BELRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial MG RESB OB ES
statements, the Group had the following material transactions Gy REBDHET NHEKBEH
with its related parties: T 5
(@ The following balances were outstanding at the end of the @ RERBARERENZEHD
reporting period: N

Amounts due from/(to)
related parties

FE W/ (f4) BB 5 IR
2016 2015
2" ZTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Non-trade related FE 5 HE
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.  EIME FLAa BB R A 7

(“Guangzhou Bawang’) (note i) ([EMEBE]) (BHED - (5,308)
Guangzhou Bawang International BN T B AR EBR A G

Hotel Co., Ltd. (TEMNBEBEE] (HaEv)

(“Guangzhou Bawang Hotel”)

(note iv) (54) —
Trade related g 5 e
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products BMNTRAKRERAR

Company Limited (TEEMN R 8A) (B 5Eiii)

(“Guangzhou Chenming”) (note iii) (310) (1,934)
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging Materials EMNHMERBEMB AR A A

Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Qiancai’) ([EM1ER]) (B =Eiii)

(note iii) (295) (59)
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Supply Chain BN/ EEE IR A R A Al

Management Co., Ltd. (TEM /N ) (B EEY)

(“Guangzhou Xiaoxiao”) (note v) (1) —

(660) (7,301)

Trade related g 5 e
Guangzhou Friend’s Group Information EMBRERFEEBRA A

Technology Company Limited (TEMBR @) (B &Ei)

(“Guangzhou Friend’s Group”) (note ii) 48 75
Non-trade related FEZHEE
Guangzhou Bawang (note i) N8 T (M i) 8,027 —

8,075 75
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

Guangzhou Bawang was effectively 100% owned by the Controlling
Shareholders of the Company. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
balance due from (to) Guangzhou Bawang mainly represented
prepayment of rental expenses and rental payable. The balance was
unsecured, interest-free and repayment on demand.

Guangzhou Friend’s Group was under the control of the close family
members of the Controlling Shareholders of the Company. The credit
term granted to Guangzhou Friend’s Group is 15 days. The balances
were unsecured and interest-free.

Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the control
of the close family members of the Controlling Shareholders of the
Company. The credit term granted by Guangzhou Chenming and
Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days. The balances were unsecured and
interest-free. As at 31 December 2016, the amounts due to Guangzhou
Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were due within 1 month or on
demand (2015: due within 1 month or on demand).

Guangzhou Bawang Hotel was effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Group. The balance due to Guangzhou
Bawang International mainly represented meeting and catering services
payable. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

Guangzhou Xiaoxiao were under the control of the Controlling
Shareholders of the Group. The credit term granted by Guangzhou
Xiaoxiao is payment before delivery. The balances were unsecured and
interest-free.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, meeting and
catering services were provided to the Group by
Guangzhou Bawang Hotel amounting to approximately

RMB1,039,000 (2015: RMB1,292,000).

Guangzhou

Bawang Hotel was effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Company. The Directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms
in the ordinary course of business.

34. B E

(@)

BEH R 5 @
(@)

M EE
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(©)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, raw materials
were purchased from Guangzhou Chenming amounting to
approximately RMB5,124,000 (2015: RMB4,700,000).
The Directors of the Company have confirmed that the
basis of consideration for the purchase of raw materials is
the prevailing market price.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, raw materials
were purchased from Guangzhou Qiancai amounting to
approximately RMB597,000 (2015: RMB183,000). The
Directors of the Company have confirmed that the basis
of consideration for the purchase of raw materials is the
prevailing market price.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, utilities
expenses were paid on behalf of the Group by Guangzhou
Bawang amounting to approximately RMB1,036,000 (2015:
RMB1,255,000).

On 9 August 2013, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into two lease agreements, pursuant to
which Bawang Guangzhou leased from Guangzhou
Bawang the production plant and office premises at fixed
monthly rental and management fee of RMB1,120,000
and RMB92,800, respectively. The terms of the lease
under the agreements are 3 years from 9 August 2013.
The lease agreement was renewed on 9 August 2016 and
the new terms of the lease are 3 years from 9 August
2016. The renewed monthly rental fee for production
premises and office premises are approximately
RMB490,000 and RMB45,000 respectively. The renewed
monthly management fee for production premises and
office premises are approximately RMB310,000 and
RMB39,000 respectively. Details of which were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 9 August 2016.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, approximately
RMB12,906,000 (2015: RMB14,554,000) in aggregate
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

34. B@E

(©

BEH R 5 @

REBEE_ZT—XNE+-_A=+
—BEFER MEMNEHE
ENEMEBZEEHOARE
5124000 ZE—HFE: A
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REMREMEOBERINRIT
MEAZEEEE-

REBEE-_Z—XFEF+-A=
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—HEFEARA BENBEERR
EBMYNNKEEAHOAR
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

@

During the year ended 31 December 2016, finished goods
were sold by the Group to Guangzhou Friend’s Group
amounting to nil (2015: RMB75,000). The Directors of the
Company have confirmed that the basis of consideration
for the sales of finished goods is the prevailing market
price.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, finished goods
were sold by the Group to Guangzhou Xiaoxiao amounting
to RMB36,000 (2015: nil). The Directors of the Company
have confirmed that the basis of consideration for the
sales of finished goods is the prevailing market price.

The Controlling Shareholders and Guangzhou Bawang
undertook to provide a loan facility to the Group in an
amount up to RMB140,000,000 for a period from 15
March 2013 to 31 December 2015 and was further
extended to 31 December 2017. The long-term loans are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 31 December
2017 or earlier as determined by the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had drawn
down HK$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB29,323,000) under the facility. On 3 June 2016, all
the loans from the controlling shareholders were fully
repaid. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
the loans from Controlling Shareholders was approximately
nil (2015: RMB54,946,000). The effective interest rate of
the loans from Controlling Shareholders was 5% (2015: 5%)
per annum. As at 31 December 2016, the available
facilities is approximately RMB140,000,000 (2015:
RMB85,058,000).

34. B@E

(©),

BEH R 5 @
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HEFE BEREMNBRRERN
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of notes (c) and (f)
above constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the “Report of the Directors” section to
the annual report. The related party transactions in respect of
notes (b), (d), (e), (g and (h) above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however, they are exempt
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(1) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

4. BERTRF @)

FRAREXRERM EHHA

e MORENEER S &
MRANFUAERRAENHEER S
SFERERH - EWRAF14AE
BRIBPBREEFERESEFTEW
HEI—BHR 25 aED) - (d) @) ()
ENRENEERS FaLWmHR
AIFVUAEFMAENBEER H AT
BHERSE#HR ETWHRAFE4A
EM®EZWE-

(1) EEZEBAREH
AEERFATEEREAEN
Me&smT

2016 2015

—E—REF e

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARET T

Short-term benefits 52 Hi g 7 1,995 1,854
Post-employment benefits HMERET 219 166
Termination benefits B R 18 A 111 575
2,325 2,695

The remuneration of key management personnel of the KREBFBTESEEAS R E

Group was determined by the board of Directors, in
consultation with the remuneration committee, having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

EERATHNZE e mEME
ARBEMZBEETH -

— 25587167
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —"F+=-A=+—HILFE

35. Litigations

(@)

The Directors of the Company consider that the contents
of the relevant article published by a media company on
14 July 2010 are defamatory to the Group and/or amount
to malicious falsehood. Therefore, the Group commenced
legal proceedings in the High Court of Hong Kong in
October 2010 against the media company seeking, inter
alia, damages and an injunction to restrain the media
company from publishing such contents or similar
contents. The trial of the legal proceedings has been
completed on 29 August 2015. On 23 May 2016, the
Group received the final judgment handed down by the
Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong in
respect of the legal proceedings and the Group won the
Legal Proceedings. According to the final judgment the
media company was ordered by the High Court of Hong
Kong to pay the Group, general damages for libel in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$3,005,000 (the
“Damages”). The High Court of Hong Kong also made a
costs order nisi that Next Magazine should pay to the
Group 80% of the legal costs of the Company and
Bawang Guangzhou in respect of the Legal Proceedings (the
“Costs”). On 16 December 2016, the Court of First
Instance made an order by consent of the parties that in
lieu of taxation of the costs of the action, the Defendant
do pay the Plaintiffs the sum of HK$18,000,000 (inclusive
of interest and the cost of taxation) (equivalent of
approximately RMB16,101,000) in full and final settlement
of the Costs payable by the Defendant to the Plaintiffs in
the action pursuant to the above. The Damages was
received by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016. Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, on 25 January 2017, the Group received the Costs
of HK$18,000,000 (equivalent to RMB16,101,000).

The Damages and the Costs have been recognised as
other income for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ =T —XF+-A=+—HILFE

35. Litigations (Continued)

(b)

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former
subcontractor against Bawang (China) Beverage Co.,
Limited (“‘Bawang Beverage”) in People’s Court of
Songjiang District of Shanghai (the “Shanghai Court”) in
respect of a dispute in the material processing contract
between the former subcontractor and Bawang Beverage.
In 2013, Bawang Beverage received a civil order issued
by the Shanghai Court, which accepted the application by
the former subcontractor for property attachment prior to
lawsuit to freeze Bawang Beverage’s bank accounts in
the amount of approximately RMB873,000 or other assets
under the name of Bawang Beverage. In connection with
the lawsuit, one of Bawang Beverage’'s bank accounts
with an amount of approximately RMB309,000 was
frozen. No accrual has been recorded by the Group as at
31 December 2013 based on the opinion provided by the
PRC legal counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Beverage.

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s
Court gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable
to the former subcontractor for an amount of
approximately RMB643,000 and a legal cost of
approximately RMB19,000. Accordingly, provision for
litigation in amount of approximately RMB662,000 was
recognised as other expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and amount of approximately
RMB324,000 was settled during the year ended 31
December 2014. During the year ended 31 December
2015 and 2016 and up to the date of this report, the
remaining provision of approximately RMB338,000 has
not been settled.

35.
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35. Litigations (Continued)

(©)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a lawsuit was
filed by Bawang Guangzhou against a supplier in District
Court for the incomplete construction and unsatisfactory
performance of plant and machineries provided by the
supplier. On 2 February 2015, the District Court issued a
verdict for the lawsuit whereby (i) the purchase contracts
for the plant and machineries were terminated; (i) the
supplier should pay Bawang Guangzhou a sum of
approximately RMB22,518,000 representing purchase
cost paid and liquidated damages in addition to interest;
and (i) the plant and machineries concerned should be
dismantled and removed from the factory of Bawang
Guangzhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Bawang
Guangzhou applied for an injunction against the supplier
in District Court to execute the court order handed down
in 2014. On 14 October 2016, the Group received
approximately RMB170,000 from the supplier through the
execution by the court and the above amount has been
recognised as other income for the year ended 31
December 2016. Upon further negotiation with the
supplier, Bawang Guangzhou is willing to settle the case
outside the court. During the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this report, no agreement has
been signed and no settlement has been received from
the supplier except the above amount.
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35. Litigations (Continued)

(d@

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a lawsuit was
filed by a total of 14 former employees against Bawang
Guangzhou in the District Court in respect of termination
compensation for a total sum of approximately
RMB2,891,000 representing related severance payments,
salaries and social insurance expenses. Provision of
litigation in the amount of RMB500,000 was recognised
as administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the District
Court handed down the judgement for 12 out of 14
employees that the Group was liable to the former
employees for a sum of approximately RMB652,000. The
Group lodged an appeal against the decision to the
Intermediate Court for 9 out of 12 employees and the
other 3 employees appealed by themselves against the
decision to the Intermediate Court. As at the date of this
report, the legal proceedings are in progress and based
on the opinion provided by the PRC legal counsel acting
on behalf of Bawang Guangzhou, representing that the
maximum compensation was RMB700,000 expected by
the PRC legal counsel up to the date of this report.

For the remaining two employees, the court handed down
the judgment for one of them that the Group was liable to
the former employee for a sum of approximately
RMB208,000 and the appeal by the Group was rejected
by the court. For the other one, the court handed down
the judgment that the Group was liable to the former
employee for a sum of approximately RMB45,000 and the
Group lodged an appeal against the decision. On 8 March
2017, the appeal by the Group was rejected by the court.

Accordingly, additional provision of approximately
RMB453,000 was recognised as administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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35. Litigations (Continued)

)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a lawsuit was
filed by a former employee against Bawang Guangzhou in
the District Court in respect of termination compensation.
On 8 October 2015, the District Court gave its first ruling
that Bawang Guangzhou was liable to the former
employee for a sum of approximately RMB149,000
representing related severance payments and salaries.
Both the plaintiff and Bawang Guangzhou lodged an
appeal against the decision. No hearing has yet been fixed
for the appeal. Accordingly, provision of litigation in the
amount of approximately RMB149,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Intermediate Court handed down the judgment that the
Group was liable to the former employee for a sum of
approximately RMB167,000 representing related
severance payments and salaries and the Group settled
the amount during the year. Accordingly, additional
provision of approximately RMB18,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a lawsuit was
filed by a former employee against Bawang Guangzhou in
the Guangzhou Labour Dispute Arbitration Commission
(“Guangzhou Labour Commission”) in respect of
termination compensation for a sum of approximately
RMB174,000. On 8 April 2015, the Guangzhou Labour
Commission gave its ruling that Bawang Guangzhou was
liable to the former employee for a sum of approximately
RMB17,000 representing related salaries. The plaintiff
lodged an appeal against the decision to the District
Court. On 15 October 2015, the District Court gave its
ruling that Bawang Guangzhou was liable to the former
employee for a sum of approximately RMB17,000. The
plaintiff did not file further appeal. The amount has been
recognised in administrative expenses and settled during
the year ended 31 December 2015.
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35. Litigations (Continued)

Q)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of 3
lawsuits were filed by the same supplier against Bawang
Guangzhou in the District Court and Guangzhou
Arbitration Commission for a total sum of approximately
RMB1,810,000 and RMB859,000 respectively,
representing outstanding retention fees and construction
fees. Accordingly, provision of litigation in the amount of
approximately RMB2,669,000 was recognised as
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss based on the opinion provided by the PRC
legal counsel acting on behalf of Bawang Guangzhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the District
Court and Guangzhou Arbitration Commission handed
down the judgment that the Group was liable to settle the
amount of approximately RMB1,810,000 and
RMB928,000 respectively with corresponding legal cost
and arbitration fee of approximately RMB23,000 and
RMB23,000 respectively. Therefore, the Group entered an
agreement with the supplier that the Group will settle the
above amounts by 8 times installments for the period from
August 2016 to March 2017. The monthly installment is
RMB350,000 and the remaining balance will be settled by
the last time of installment. Additional provision of
RMB115,000 was recognised as administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

The Group has settled approximately RMB1,750,000 and
the remaining provision of approximately RMB1,034,000
has not been settled for the year ended 31 December
2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a lawsuit was
filed by the Group against a former joint venture in the
District Court for the outstanding receivable amount of
rental deposit and goods sold. The Group requested for
the following claim: (i) Repayment of the rental deposit of
approximately RMB57,000; (i) Repayment of the goods
sold of approximately RMB232,000; and (i) Repayment of
the overdue penalty of goods sold of approximately
RMB232,000.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 15
March 2017, the Group withdrew the lawsuit.
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36. Principal Subsidiaries 6. TEWE AT

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December RZE—RFR_ZE—RAF+=A8

2016 and 2015 are as follows: —t+—BARAFTENBRAFE
uNE
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid-  Proportion ownership interest and
establishment and up/registered voting power
Name operation ordinary share held by the Company Principal activities
o BRTR ADAREHERR .
a1 RUIRKEHE BREX BENREELA TEEH
2016 2015
—ARE —E-RE
Direct Indirect  Direct Indirect
EE RBE EE fa
% % % %
Forever Giants Limited BVI USD1 - 100 — Marketing and promotion of household
100 and personal care products
Forever Giants Limited EBREAES Zl EHEREBRARAAZELEER
Bawang International Group ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding, advertising agency
Holding (HK) Limited and trading of household and
personal care products
ETEBREEZR(FR) &8 BT REZR BEREREHR
BARAT EEZAREAERER
Hong Kong Bawang Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 - 100 Advertising agency and trading of
International Trading household and personal care
Limited products
BEERTEHRESRA BA B J%Ht%&“fﬁ&?’ﬁf%ﬁ%&
EAZERE®
Bawang Guangzhou (note a) ~ The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of
household and personal care
products
T EM (7 () i % 7167,500,000 HEREHREER AR
BEAEEER
Bawang Beverage (note a) The PRC HK$180,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive during the year
BT (Kt() FE 7 7£.180,000,000 FRTED
Guangzhou Fanmei Electronic  The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - — Inactive during the year
Business Company
Limited*
BNEHBEFHBERAA AR #1,000,000 ERTED
Guangzhou Bawang Trading  The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - — Inactive during the year
Company Limited*
BHNEIESERAA FE AR #1,000,000 FRTED
Note: B &F -
(@  These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies (@) hEER /*—EE’\ EP BRI E2ERER R

established in the PRC.

* For identification purposes only

BREMER
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36. Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of both years or at any time during the years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as
follows:

36. T EM B R 7 @)

FREIEARAEEFRARTIER
EXEEXELEEMBBEZHE
RAl-ARAEERR/EHREMN
BRrrAlzHBE<ERBRILEM
PR FIR ©

REFRE-—FEHAN HELCH
o 18 X R B AT AEAE AR BT o

RERAR AAEEEMLAEER
MEFRBERANEZENBRA -
MEARZEZXEBMANT

5 aray
AX =T

Number of subsidiaries

MELREE

Principal activities Principal place of business 2016 2015
FEEK FTEEK MY —E—REF —E—RF
Investment holding BVI 2 2
BEER EBRELESE
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
KEER BA

37. Comparatives 37. ¥tk
Trade and other receivables presented in the consolidated BT BEHRES TEE S MM E
statement of financial position previously included an amount Wk - Hoh B IE BB 5 e ROE
due from a related party and trade and other receivables. To EHoMEMBERK  BFARNEE
conform to current year’s presentation, the amount due from a BEH MK BEEE_ZT—RFT
related party as at 31 December 2015 has been reclassified “TA=T—BULEFE BB LEN
from trade and other receivables and separately presented in SHENREFINEMBEBRARFE
the consolidated statement of financial position to facilitate a o BRI EEHYBRE
better presentation. A EREHER -

38. Events after the Reporting Period 38. 2K EIE

As mentioned in note 35(a), subsequent on 25 January 2017,
the Costs of HK$18,000,000 (equivalent of approximately
RMB16,101,000) recovered from litigation was received by the
Group.

WM ESB@QFF T~ BER T —+
F—A-+HB - £EEKEFALE
75 18,000,000 (4 E W AR ¥
16,101,0007T) °
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As at 31 December 2016 R=Z—~F+=-A=+—H

Annual Report 2016

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE ZZT—RF ZE-WF =ZT—=F =ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTE ARBTE
(Restated)
(eE751)
Results E¥
Turnover L 264,229 232,181 294,649 478,380 555,955
Profit/(loss) before taxation %4 A 7 8/ (&5 18) 41,094 (110,422) (116,457) (143,502) (534,964)
Taxation i 8 2,610 - - - (82,609)
Profit/(loss) for the year ViN/NEIE 2N X
attributable to the ZFERFE/
owners of (B1#8)
the Company 43,704 (110,422) (116,457) (143,502) (617,569)
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Property, plant and ME - BB MRE
equipment 137,237 155,284 225,340 294,256 321,619
Prepaid advertising fee ERNEEEH - - — 123 1,454
Biological assets EMEE 457 426 175 170 142
Net current/(liabilities) B (BB EE
assets F1E 13,305 (56,852) (26,364) (29,346) 91,485
Total assets less current EEBERTE
liabilities aE 150,542 98,432 199,151 265,203 414,700
Loan from controlling 12 2 A% 3R 1R X
shareholders - 54,946 44,069 — —
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE - 2,031 2,031 2,031 2,031
Net assets EEEE 150,542 41,455 153,051 263,172 412,669
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital A% 7R 277,878 256,705 256,639 256,639 256,639
Reserves & (127,336) (215,250) (103,588) 6,533 156,030
Total equity A 150,542 41,455 153,051 263,172 412,669
Earning/(loss) per share f& EF/ (& 18)
Basic and diluted (RMB) BERK#E
(ANE#E) 0.01 (0.038) (0.04) (0.05) (0.21)
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